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The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial
Association of Queensland (RNA) is committed
to celebrating and championing agriculture
and the essential role it plays in the everyday
lives of Queenslanders.
We do this by showcasing and rewarding
the very best of the best through our
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) and
Royal Queensland Food and Wine
Show (RQFWS) competitions.
Our education programs and
promotions are also designed to
advocate for agriculture and
reflect the association’s
core charter.
The RNA has been
committed to ensuring
the community
recognises the vital
role agriculture plays
in everyday life
since 1875.
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who we are
Our Business Focus
Founded in 1875, the RNA is an independent,
not for profit member based association that has
freehold title to the iconic Brisbane Showgrounds.

The association’s guiding mission is to celebrate
and champion the essential role agriculture plays
in the everyday lives of Queenslanders.

Royal Queensland Show (Ekka)

The Royal Queensland Show (Ekka), is Queensland’s largest and most
loved annual event. It’s run by the RNA on behalf of the community
for 10 days each year in August. While providing entertainment and
fun, the show is also the platform for some serious competition,
attracting more than 21,000 entries across 48 competition sections
each year. International and national judges attend to award the best
in agriculture, fine arts, horse events, canine and feline, beef and dairy
cattle, boer goats, fleece, poultry and birds, pisciculture, woodchop
and sawing and more. The show also provides an important
educational focus for students, who compete for awards in art,
gardening and multimedia. The Ekka, which has always been a place
for businesses to show and sell their wares, is Queensland’s largest
and most targeted marketplace attracting more than 400 retailers.

Placemaking

The $2.9 billion, 15 year Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration
Project is one of the largest mixed-use, urban regeneration projects
in Australia. The revitalisation of the Showgrounds generates year
round vitality throughout the precinct, while ensuring the Royal
Queensland Show remains on the site where it all began in 1876.
Once complete, more than 15,000 people will live, work and play
each day at the Brisbane Showgrounds, which is fast becoming
Queensland’s most prominent lifestyle and events precinct.
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Governed by 21 elected Councillors, the RNA
represents more than 5,000 members across
Queensland and further afield, many whose families
have been involved with the RNA for generations.

Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show (RQFWS)

Launched in 2009, the Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show
(RQFWS) is designed to recognise and reward outstanding
producers and their produce through its individual competitions:
Cheese and Dairy Produce; Ice cream, Gelato and Sorbet; Branded
Beef; Branded Lamb; Wine; Ham, Bacon and Smallgoods; and
Sausage King and Best Butchers Burger. The RQFWS has grown
rapidly in recognition and awareness throughout the industry and is
known as Queensland’s premier food and wine competition.

Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC)
& Brisbane Showgrounds

The Brisbane Showgrounds is a venue business, which hosts almost
300 events each year including exhibitions, conferences and music
festivals, across its 22 hectares.
The Royal International Convention Centre (Royal ICC) is a world-class,
two-level building featuring three halls with state-of-the-art rigging,
seven adaptable meeting rooms, two boardrooms, an open foyer, 140
car parks and catering facilities with award-winning menus on offer.

delivering
our strategy
Year in review
2016 was a very successful year for the RNA.
Strong growth was recorded across our venue
business; major milestones were reached
in our ongoing Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project plus attendance at the
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) increased for
the first time in three years.
As a not for profit, the RNA recorded a
positive EBITDA result for 2016 of $87,000
an improvement on 2015’s EBITDA loss of
$349,000. This was due to an outstanding
revenue result from our venue sales and a
successful Ekka which recorded growth in
ticket sales, yield and attendance.
In 2016, the RNA’s overall turnover, excluding
net redevelopment revenue, declined by
1.9 per cent to $29.2 million. Event revenue
was impacted by the closure of several
music festivals in 2016 - Soundwave and
Stereosonic. However this was offset by
the Royal International Convention Centre
recording a 40 per cent growth in revenue,
while the Ekka recorded a 24 per cent
increase in net operating surplus.
The RNA also recorded a net redevelopment
revenue for the year of $5.8 million (funds
to be deposited into the RNA Development
Fund), resulting from the further settlements
of The Green residential apartments. 2017
will see the settlement of 401 apartments
from The Yards residential development.
2016 was a major year for the regeneration
project with several stage two development

milestones reached. February saw the
opening of the four and a half star Rydges
Hotel, which for the first time provided
critical onsite accommodation for our venue
business, Ekka visitors and the general
public. King Street also opened to traffic
in February, linking St Pauls Terrace and
Gregory Terrace.
Following Ekka, five restaurants opened
progressively to launch the start of the King
Street dining precinct - The George Bar
and Bistro, Fat Dumpling, Sushi & Nori,
Hello Chicken and Il Verde. Construction
also started post Ekka on the retail concept
Kings Co-op and its 375 bay, multi-storey
car park. In 2017, the redevelopment will
continue with major stage three works
starting including the Large Animal Pavilion
and the world’s largest timber building
known as 5 King.
The RNA’s EBITDA levels will continue to
be marginal for the next decade until the
annuity assets being created through the
redevelopment project return cash flow to
the RNA. Under our project agreement,
earnings from the annuity assets are
retained under the RNA Development Fund
and quarantined for use for future project
costs. This is all part of our long term
strategic plan and requires a very disciplined
approach to cash flow management until
these assets are returned to the RNA.
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President’s
report
longer tied solely to our iconic Ekka, as our
Showgrounds now attract a million visitors a
year and our $2.9 billion regeneration project
is transforming our precinct into a world class
lifestyle and events destination.

When the RNA held its very first Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka) on the Brisbane
Showgrounds in 1876 about 15,000 people
attended. Today, some 141 years later, the
Ekka has attracted more than 30 million
people over its 139 year history. Moving
into the 21st century the RNA’s legacy is no

2016 was a transformative year for the RNA as
major milestones were reached in stage two of
our 15 year regeneration project. The four and
a half star Rydges Hotel opened in February
together with King Street. We also welcomed
our first residents to The Green - while five
restaurants, forming part of our emerging King
Street dining precinct, also opened. 2016
marked the sixth year of construction of the
redevelopment, which once completed, will
attract more than 15,000 people each day to
live, work and enjoy. Work on several stage
three projects also commenced post Ekka

2016 including construction on Kings Co-Op
and its multi storey carpark.
The importance of the regeneration project
cannot be overstated in its aim to ensure the
long term sustainability of our not for profit
association, including the Ekka. It is thanks to
the foresight and vision of past and present
members of the RNA Council who have driven
this project for almost a decade. At the time
the two guiding principles behind the project
were to firstly ensure the Ekka remained here
at the Showgrounds. The second goal was to
ensure the long term viability of the RNA by
diversifying operations to earn revenue outside
of show. This diversification and introduction of
new venue sales and redevelopment revenue
is being reinvested into our overall mission
of celebrating and championing agriculture

through the Ekka, our educational programs
and food and wine competitions. This year
our Royal International Convention Centre
recorded a growth in sales of 40 per cent
with the revenue raised funding our mission.
In 2017 work will start on our Large Animal
Pavilion which will come into operation at the
2018 show.
The 2016 Ekka was a true celebration of
heritage and innovation, welcoming The Old
Museum back to the show for the first time in
119 years, and introducing historic discounts
to make the show the best value ever. The Old
Museum was first constructed by the RNA in
1891 as Brisbane’s first Exhibition Building.
The Queensland Government took control
of the building in 1897 following a major
economic depression. In 1899 it became the
Queensland Museum.
In 2016, The Old Museum became the new
home of Ekka’s Flower and Garden Exhibition
and Quilts Across Queensland and proved
very popular with show visitors. Bringing the
Ekka and The Old Museum back together
again symbolises the importance of heritage
and legacy to the RNA and we look forward to
The Old Museum being a major feature at the
2017 show and into the future.
Competitions remain at the heart of the show,
from the very first Exhibition in 1876, the Ekka
has showcased the best of the best, from
champion bulls to giant pumpkins. In 2016, we
welcomed more than 21,000 entries across
13,000 classes in 48 competition sections.

Almost 4,000 exhibitors travelled from across
the country to compete for their chance to
win a coveted blue ribbon, with more than
1,300 of those first time competitors. There
were some new and exciting competitions
in 2016 including the Fashions on the Field
competition held on Thoroughbred Day. The
new 330 day Paddock to Palate Wagyu
Challenge was also launched, with the winners
to be announced in 2017.
More than 500 women attended our second
RNA Charity Fundraiser, held on Ekka eve
which raised more than $40,000 to purchase
iPads for children, whose families reside
in drought affected areas, and are being
educated through the Mt Isa and Charters
Towers Schools of Distance Education.
In 2016, the Ekka’s Ag Hall featured a new
interactive rural journey for children, to help
the next generation understand that everything
starts with agriculture, from the food they
eat to the clothes they wear. The activities
included a cooking class using fresh and
healthy ingredients, an interactive display to
teach children about the grain to flour process,
precision farming with peddle tractors and a
farmers patch where children could dig up
and identify different vegetables. Also taking
part in the learning activities in the Ag Hall
were thousands of students from 22 primary
and secondary schools from south-east
Queensland and northern New South Wales,
who came to the show with their teachers
on Ekka’s dedicated school days. It’s vitally

important the next generation of students
understand the importance agriculture plays
in their lives and the RNA is steadfast in its
commitment to this.
In 2017, the RNA will celebrate the 140th
anniversary of the Ekka and we are grateful
to the generosity of more than 800 volunteers
who give their time each year to help us
stage this remarkable event on behalf of
the community. The 2016 Ekka was a great
success in once again bringing country to the
city in a 10 day celebration of the best of the
best in our state. For the first time in three
years we increased attendance at the show
and I would like to sincerely thank my fellow
councillors for their invaluable efforts and
enthusiasm. I would also like to pay tribute to
the RNA’s staff, ably led by our Chief Executive
Brendan Christou, our volunteers, judges and
stewards for their hard work during the year.

David Thomas
President

“It’s vitally important the next generation
of students understand the importance
agriculture plays in their lives and the RNA
is steadfast in its commitment to this.”
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Chief
Executive’s
report

“The Royal ICC recorded a 40 per cent
increase in sales – an excellent result
considering the venue first opened
for business in just 2013.”

2016 has been a watershed year for the RNA
particularly in terms of our venue sales revenue
growth and the coming of age of the Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal ICC).
Over the past 12 months, the Royal ICC
recorded a 40 per cent increase in sales – an
excellent result considering the venue first
opened for business in just 2013. The Ekka
delivered a significant 24 per cent increase in
net operating surplus and almost five per cent
growth in attendance; while major stage two
milestones were achieved in our $2.9 billion
Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration Project.
Our strategic objectives for 2016 focussed on
the following key areas:
•

To promote agricultural and industrial
products to local, national and
international visitors through the staging of
the Royal Queensland Show (Ekka)

•

To create a diversified RNA business,
ensuring that we can continue to run an
‘uncompromised’ Ekka

•

To reinvest in our mission of celebrating
and championing agriculture and the
essential role it plays in the everyday lives
of Queenslanders

•

Transform the Brisbane Showgrounds into
a multidimensional ‘place’ rather than just
an events destination

Between 2013 and 2015 our direction focussed
on Year 1 (2013) establishing a solid framework
for success, improving our processes,
operating practices and building workplace
expertise. Year 2 (2014) was all about
consolidating, and refining these businesses
while 2015 focused on improving efficiencies
and evolving the businesses and most
importantly securing long term certainty through
our $2.9 billion Regeneration Project. Our
strategy in 2016 to focus on strong revenue
growth for the Royal ICC; planning and creation

8
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of annuity assets and delivering innovation
and targeted growth for the Ekka produced
very successful results for the association.
Over the past three years, significant work has
been done to improve the quality of the Ekka
offering. In particular, work has been performed
on improving the minimum quality standards as
well as the entertainment offering. Both of these
areas are deemed by our annual IER market
research as being important for driving
attendance (entertainment) and also customer
satisfaction. This work has resulted in an
improvement in our customer satisfaction in
these areas as well as our Net Promoter Score
(NPS).
In 2016 a major strategic focus was to improve
the value perception of Ekka, increase
attendances, whilst maintaining overall Ekka
earnings and grow new target markets. A
discount digital marketing strategy, a new two
day pass, plus two for one food and ride days
proved popular and increased ticket sales. The
final Sunday of show recorded a 30 per cent
growth in attendance thanks to the Super Food
Sunday two for one offer.
The RNA also partnered with Tourism and
Events Queensland to promote the show to
Greater China with a special international
campaign. Almost 6,000 people from China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan came to Ekka – a 20
per cent increase on 2015. In 2016, a new 10
year plan for Ekka was developed to ensure our
mission of celebrating and championing
agriculture was at the forefront of planning,
while at the same time, ensuring the show
remains relevant to a fast changing world and
importantly focuses on a major digital
integration and presence.
In 2016 more than 250 events were staged at
the Royal ICC and Brisbane Showgrounds – an
increase of almost 20 per cent on 2015,
attracting almost a million people. Our focus on

ensuring excellence in service and integrating
our award-winning Royal Queensland Food and
Wine Show (RQFWS) products into the menu
has seen our venue sales increase significantly.
2016 also marked a major year for the
regeneration project with several stage two
development projects completed. February saw
the opening of the four and a half star Rydges
Hotel, which for the first time provided critical
onsite accommodation for our venue
businesses, Ekka visitors and the general public.
King Street also opened to traffic in February,
while the emergence of the King Street dining
precinct occurred with five restaurants opening
between August and November.
I would like to sincerely thank the efforts of all
staff for their commitment and effort during the
year. On behalf of all staff I express our thanks
to President David Thomas and the RNA
Council for their guidance, vision and
collaboration throughout the year and our RNA
members for their continued support of our
association.
2017 is shaping up as another exciting year
with construction starting on stage three
regeneration projects including the Large
Animal Pavilion, the world’s largest timber
building in King Street, the second residential
apartment The Yards, Kings Co-Op plus more
retail. This ongoing transformation is ensuring
the Showgrounds continues its evolution into a
world-class lifestyle and events destination
precinct and most importantly ensures the
Ekka remains at its birthplace for generations
to come.

Brendan Christou
Chief Executive
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Retiring councillors
Phil Kesby
Phil Kesby retired from the RNA Council in
June, 2016. He was elected to Council in
2011, after serving as an Honorary Council
Steward and Steward in the woodchop section
for more than six years. With more than 35 years’
experience in infrastructure delivery across a wide range
of complex projects, Mr Kesby brought great expertise to the RNA. During
his time on the RNA Council he was Chair of the Woodchop Committee
and an active member of the Industry and Sponsorship and Ekka Show
Legend Committees.

Ross Douglas
Ross Douglas retired from the RNA Council
in October 2016, after 12 years of service.
Mr Douglas, who joined the Council in 2004,
was a member of the Executive Committee,
Finance and Audit Committees, Appeals and
Disciplinary Committee, Education and the
Future, and the Joint Stock Committees. He was
also Chairman of the Animal Boulevard, Education on
Show and the Horse Breeds Expo Committees. Mr Douglas has been
involved with the production of beef cattle and show societies, both at
administrative and executive levels, for 40 years and the RNA has greatly
benefitted from his expertise.

10
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New councillors
John Cotter
John Cotter was appointed to the RNA Council
in July, 2016. He has a long association with
the RNA having been a junior exhibitor, Beef
and Woodchop Steward and Honorary Council
Steward, Chair of the Future Directions Committee
and a member of the Woodchop Committee and Marketing
and Sponsorship Committee. Mr Cotter is the Chair of a family office with
health, resources and agricultural investments and serves as a nonexecutive director on boards in the infrastructure sector.

Susan McDonald
Susan McDonald was appointed to the RNA
Council in October, 2016. Ms McDonald is
Managing Director of Super Butcher, a retail
group of six stores and online butchers,
serving 10,000 people a week in South-East
Queensland. Super Butcher is the retail arm of the
McDonald family’s cattle grazing and export business.
With degrees in Commerce and Economics, and as a
registered CPA, she has more than 20 years of experience in accountancy
and business management. Ms McDonald brings a wealth of expertise to
the RNA, particularly in the beef supply chain area and her knowledge of
‘paddock to plate’ retailing and production.

2016 RNA Annual Report
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your ekka
Royal Queensland Show
Overview

For 139 years, the Royal Queensland Show
(Ekka) has been bringing the country and
city together for a 10 day celebration of
Queensland agriculture and the critical role it
plays in our everyday lives.
On average, more than 400,000 people come
together to enjoy and experience Queensland’s
largest and most loved annual event.
The Ekka symbolises Queensland culture and
provides reward and recognition for those

dedicated to producing the best of the best,
from champion bulls to blue ribbon worthy
fruit cakes.

The Ekka is the people’s show, unique in the
Australian landscape due to its rich generational
connection with Queenslanders.

In 2016, the iconic Ekka welcomed 21,000
competition entries, 10,000 animals, a
smorgasbord of award-winning food and
wine, tens of thousands of school children
and hours of free family entertainment
including the spectacular world-class night
show EkkaNITES.

Since 1876, the RNA has been the proud
custodian of this historic event and is
committed to preserving a wonderful legacy for
future generations to enjoy.

EkkaNITES goes
off with a bang
The Main Arena came alive each night of show,
with the spectacular EkkaNITES.
It featured the traditional elements like the
woodchop and sheepdogs, before turning
up the heat with the Hot Wheels High Octane
Show which included V8 drift cars, the world
first Sphere of Death and breathtaking aerial
tricks from the FMX Freestyle Kings.
EkkaNITES showcased incredible talent in
2016. American FMX superstar Vicki Golden
and V8 Supercar driver Renee Gracie revved
up the Hot Wheels High Octane Show, while
trick riding star Mikayla Jade showed amazing
balance on the back of a horse.
The EkkaNITES fireworks finale engulfed the
Main Arena in explosive light and colour. It
featured a 20 metre high pyrotechnic tower,
shooting fireworks from 49 different positions,
creating a Bellagio fountain effect. The finale
also saw quad motorcycles tow 20 kites with
silver fountain fireworks and illuminated horses
change colours before the crowd’s eyes.
For the fourth year, this spectacular nightly
event was produced by entertainment
extraordinaire Jack Ellison, who has worked
on blockbuster films including Mission
Impossible 2. Max Brunner and his team from
Skylighter FireworX were in charge of the
fireworks display, while Jeffrey John Pavey
designed the lighting.
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The return of
The Old Museum
For the first time in 119 years, The Old Museum
came home to Ekka forming a brand new
precinct for the 10 days of show.
It was home to Ekka’s Flower and Garden
Exhibition presented by Envy Lawn “Grown for
Life” and Quilts Across Queensland presented
by Queensland Quilters.
The precinct was buzzing with a hive of activity
ranging from student garden installations
and community and garden society displays
to outdoor dining, stunning quilts and a jam
packed speaker schedule on the Flower and
Garden Platform Stage. Couples had fun
sharing a kiss under the Ekka Love Tree, while
the kids enjoyed making flower crowns and
seeing life-sized dinosaurs at the Triceratops
Tiara Tea Party.
The Old Museum was built by the RNA in 1891
and was originally called the Exhibition Building
and Concert Hall. The Queensland Government
took control of the building and grounds in
1897, following a major economic depression.
It then became home of the Queensland
Museum in 1899.
Bringing the Ekka and The Old Museum back
together again in 2016 was truly special and
symbolised the importance of heritage and
legacy to the RNA.
To celebrate The Old Museum coming home to
Ekka, the RNA released a brand new rose called
the ‘Royal Queensland Show.’ The stunning
apricot coloured rose was planted in The Old
Museum rose garden on the first morning of
show (August 5) and could also be purchased to
brighten up people’s gardens at home.

Simply the best
Competitions remain at the heart of the
Royal Queensland Show. From the very first
Exhibition in 1876, the Ekka has showcased
the best of the best, from champion bulls to
giant pumpkins.
In 2016, the state’s premier competition event
attracted 21,000 entries across 13,000 classes
in 48 competition sections. Almost 4,000
exhibitors travelled from across the country to
compete for their chance to win a coveted blue
ribbon, with more than 1,300 of those first-time
competitors.
There were some new and exciting
competitions in 2016. The Fashions on the
Field competition was held on Thoroughbred
day, judging the most stylish ladies and
gentlemen, while the School Scarecrow
Competition saw students create frightfully
fun scarecrows to be displayed at The Old
Museum. The new 330 day Paddock to Palate
Wagyu Challenge was also launched, with the
winners to be announced in 2017.
There were also new competition classes
including 12 new classes in the Cookery
Competition, from Boiled Chocolate Fudge to
Sauerkraut, and new production classes in the
Angoras and Mohair Fleece Competition.

14
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Royal Queensland Show 2016 Grand Champions
Category

Winner

Thoroughbred
Supreme Champion Thoroughbred

Winner

Stud Beef
Regal Banquet, Anderson & Powell Families, Oakey QLD

Stud Horses

The Warby Trophy Champion of Champions Breed Pair

CRATHES ESTELLA 33 (P), Milford Charolais Stud, Beaudesert QLD
DSK TGL LEGACY L34 (P), Elite and Moongool Charolais, Meandarra QLD

The Bassingthwaighte Trophy Champion of Champions Bull

VIVA MARIO (D), Alistair & Pamela Davison, Tieri QLD

Champion of Champions Cow or Heifer

CRATHES ESTELLA 33 (P), Milford Charolais Stud, Beaudesert QLD

Supreme Champion Australian Stockhorse

Glen Lee Rivoli Angelique, Allstars Australian Performance Horses,
Kerry QLD

Supreme Champion Clydesdale

Duneske Flash Pearl, J M & I Stewart-Koster, Highgrove QLD

Interbreed Champion (Small Breeds)

Supreme Champion Riding Pony

Miss Universe, Austin, Lilley and Elliott Family, Tamborine QLD

Interbreed Champion Bull

TANVIEW JACKAROO, Kenneth & Tanya Falkenhagen, Boonah QLD

Interbreed Champion Cow or Heifer

SILVER FERN LADY LOOPY 47405 (H) (PHA: F), T.D & T.M Nuttridge,
Lockyer Waters QLD

Farriers & Blacksmiths
Most Successful Exhibitor Open

Rodney King, Amberley NZ

Horses in Action

Led Steer
Grand Champion Led Steer

Hereford Limo Cross, Hunday Pastrol Co, Quirindi NSW

Grand Champion Led Steer Carcass

Purebred Limousin, Lydford Family - Universal Limousins, Dubbo NSW

Champion Hack of Queensland

Mikimoto, Joh Bailey & Sandra McCann, The Oaks NSW

Champion Gentleman Rider

Carousel’s King Hit ridden by Daniel Retschlag, Jayde Novak, Kingaroy QLD

Champion Lady Rider

Black Tie ridden by Jemma Heran, GC Equestrian & Jemma Heran,
Guanaba QLD

Champion Show Hunter Galloway of Queensland

Chloble Park Madrid, A Willett & S Johnson, Narangba QLD

Angora Goats

Champion Pony Hack of Queensland – Over 12.2 Hands

Headley Park Royal Show, GC Equestrian - Riley Kent & Sarah
Scotson, Guanaba QLD

Grand Champion Angora Goat of Show

Champion Medium or Heavy Horse in Harness – Over 14 Hands

Cobigan Antoinette, Cobigan Draught Horses, Kyogle NSW

Woodchop & Sawing
Champion Axeman of the Show

Kody Steers, Sheffield TAS

Canine
Champion of Show

SUP.CH. PICARDY PS I LOVE YOU, Mr M & Mrs L Boyd & Miss J
Foulds, Meringandan West QLD

Supreme All Breeds Feline of Show

Dairy Goats
Supreme Champion Dairy Doe of Show

Poldark Splendor, Lesley & Tom Mcdowell, Morganville QLD

Tagora 29, Sue Paterson, Cambooya QLD

Sheep
Supreme Champion Ram of Show

Silverdale, Silverdale Dorsets Studs, Inglewood QLD

Supreme Champion Ewe of Show

SCOTS PIPPA, Scots PGC College, Warwick QLD

Supreme Champion Breeders of Show

Silverdale Dorsets Studs, Inglewood QLD

Quilts Across Queensland
Best of Show

Red Floral Quilt with Pillow Sham, M M Svenson, Bundaberg QLD

Fine Arts

Feline
CCCA GD CH & DIAMOND GD CH BABYBEST CAT SO GENTLE VAN
(IMP BELGIUM), Lee Clark, Melbourne VIC

Pisciculture

Grand Champion Entry - Cake Decorating

Themed Cake Teapot, Brenden Clem, Chermside West QLD

Grand Champion Exhibit – Creative Art & Craft

Possums, Beverley Bosel, Ayr QLD

Champion Portrait of Show

Morobe Child, Penelope Gilbert-Ng, Runcorn QLD

Champion Fish of Show

Downstream Aquatics, Annerley QLD

Champion Sculpture

Surf ‘s Up, Jane Prasser, Kenmore QLD

Grand Champion Exhibit of Show

Downstream Aquatics, Annerley QLD

Champion Print of Show – Photography

Underwater World, Annette Scott, Hunchy QLD

Poultry

Agricultural Hall

Eric Dowdle Memorial Prize Grand Champion Fowl of Show

Bantam Pekin - White Cockerel, Geoffrey Edards, Maryborough QLD

Best Collection of Exhibitors from the Districts

Moreton District Exhibit Committee

Ivan Patava Memorial Prize Grand Champion Waterfowl of Show

Indian Runner - White Young Drake, Terry & Linda Taylor, Burua QLD

Champion Exhibitor – Home Grown Giant Vegetable

Geoff Frohloff, Minden QLD

Dempsey Bailey Memorial Prize Grand Champion Bantam of Show

Bantam Pekin - White Cockerel, Geoffrey Edards, Maryborough QLD

Apiculture

Dairy Cattle
Supreme Champion Dairy Cow

Champion Honey of Show
KENARIE JADE FINCH, PG & PM McDonald, Murwillumbah NSW

Prime Beef
Grand Champion Pen

16
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Charolais X, Noel & Elizabeth Cook, Goondiwindi QLD

P & N Geeves, Blackstone QLD

Flower and Garden
Mabel Burnett Shield – Most Effective Display

The Orchid Society of South East Queensland

Colin Campbell Memorial – Most Educational Display

Bromeliad Society

2016 RNA Annual Report
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Fashion parades
hit the runway

RNA Charity
Fundraiser

Fashion fans were treated to a fabulous display
of style at the 2016 Ekka, with the iconic
Natural Fibres Fashion Parades celebrating
their 25th year.

More than 500 women attended the second
RNA Charity Fundraiser, held on Ekka eve.
In line with the RNA’s charter of helping and
educating rural youth, the event raised money
for the purchase of iPads for children whose
families reside in drought affected areas.

Twelve of Queensland’s most sought-after
and long-established designers selected a
favourite piece from the last 25 years for a rare
runway revival.
The parades, directed by Lindsay Bennett,
featured collections made from fine-quality
cotton, wool and other natural materials.
Audiences at the Natural Fibres Fashion
Parades on the first day of show (August 5)
got an extra treat, meeting Australia’s beauty
mastermind, Napoleon Perdis.
The long-term makeup sponsor of the parades
and his eldest daughter, Lianna, took part in a
Q&A on stage, before signing autographs.

Lumberjack Show
saws to new heights
The larrikin lumberjacks from the Heritage Bank Lumberjack Show drew
large crowds to Stockman’s Rest each day of show.
Their competition to prove just who is the best in the bush featured
impressive chainsaw carving, speed climbing up a 50 foot pole, log rolling
in a 7,000 litre water pond and hot saw racing.

The five star Royal Queensland Steakhouse
presented by JBS had mouths watering, with
the menu featuring the nation’s best steak
and lamb.
The chefs cooked around 5,000 award-winning
steaks for guests, including a Darling Downs
2016 RNA Annual Report

For the first time ever, visitors to Ekka were able to have ‘Dinner with Dom’
at the RQFWS Cooking Stage.
For just $30 a ticket, guests enjoyed a sit down dinner featuring fresh
Australian produce, prepared in front of them by Dominique herself.
The new concept was a hit, with all five ‘Dinner with Dom’ sessions sold out.

Special guests included the day’s MC, ABC
Landline’s Pip Courtney, former Governor
General of Australia Dame Quentin Bryce,
Premier Annastacia Palaszczuk and guest
speaker Annabelle Brayley, who spoke about
her involvement with the Charleville School of
Distance Education.

The international act from Canada starred Australia’s Dony Skevos, New
Zealand’s Ben Lefler and Canada’s Lukas Brown-John, who are some of
the world’s best free speed climbers.

RQFWS award-winners
steak their claim
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Dinner with Dom

Thanks to the wonderful support received,
more than $40,000 was raised to purchase
iPads for children being educated through both
the Mt Isa and Charters Towers Schools of
Distance Education.

Wagyu produced by Australian Agricultural
Company, which was crowned RQFWS 2016
Grand Champion Branded Beef of Show.
Sanger Australia’s Mr Lamb product, awarded
the title of RQFWS Champion Branded Lamb
of Show, was also a popular menu choice.

Foodie mecca hits the spot
Dedicated to unearthing and promoting
Queensland’s finest food and wine offerings, the
Ekka was once again a foodie mecca in 2016.
With almost 70 vendors, the Woolworths
Fresh Food Pavilion offered a huge selection of
fresh and delicious local produce for tasting or
purchasing including Bunya Cheeses, the new
Mac and Cheese Bar, delicious flavours from

The Fudge Factory and handmade cupcakes
from the Cupcake Parlour.
While Gourmet Plaza was filled with flavours
from across the globe, including the new
Burrito Mexican Grill serving popular burrito
bowls and the RQFWS Tastings stall offering
Gold medal-winning beef, lamb and sausages
for just $5 a plate.
2016 RNA Annual Report
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Digital fast facts

Ekka a drawcard
for Asian tourists

Super ticket
options

Triple cheese
champion

Foodie facts

Almost 6,500 people from Greater China visited
the Ekka in 2016 to see giant pumpkins, prized
cattle and champion woodchoppers, thanks
to an international marketing campaign with
Ekka’s Strategic Tourism Partner, Tourism and
Events Queensland (TEQ).

For the very first time, a Two Day Pass, Super
Ride Tuesday and Super Food Sunday ticket
options were introduced, making the 2016
Ekka the best value ever.

Caboolture State High School (CSHS) took out
the champion blue cheese title for the third year
in a row, at the Ekka’s Student Made Cheese
Awards at the Brisbane Showgrounds in June.

Dagwood dogs				184,000+

The 2 for 1 rides on Tuesday and the 2 for 1
food items on the last Sunday of show proved
popular, with attendance up on both these
days, compared to 2015.

In the lead-up to Ekka, the school won the
Mould Ripened Cheese - Blue category with
their entry titled ‘The Chosen One.’ It was
indeed the chosen one, with Chief Judge
Russell Smith saying it stood out in the line-up
of 44 blue cheeses.

Cheese toasties 				40,000+

While Murrumba State Secondary College
(MSSC) also took top honours, winning the
Mould Ripened Cheese - White category for
their creamy camembert titled ‘Camembert
Group Three.’

Schooners of beer				176,000+

Visitors from China, Taiwan and Hong Kong
made the trip to Brisbane in August for
Queensland’s largest annual event – this
represents almost a 20 per cent increase from
these regions coming to Ekka than in 2015.
With China now Queensland’s fastest growing
tourism market, the RNA partnered with
TEQ on a fresh strategy for 2016, focusing
on marketing activities in Greater China
cities offering flights to Brisbane including
Beijing, Shanghai, Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Guangdong.

Street Science
The new Street Science activities in the
Agricultural Hall proved a hit, with more than
15,000 children taking part.
The kids got hands-on as they looked through
the microscope, to learn about crop health.
They also had the opportunity to touch
and learn all about sugarcane and other
Queensland grown products.

Iconic Ekka Strawberry Sundaes		

152,000+

Chips on a stick				10,000+
Award-winning steaks			5,000+
CWA scones					7,000+

Glasses of wine				

33,000+

Ekka’s largest
competitions in 2016
Canine					2,462
Horse 						2,318
Poultry						1,774
Woodchop and Sawing			1,375

Facebook friends		

70,143

Amount of people Ekka
Facebook posts reached

3.4 million

Instagram followers 		

9,367

#Ekka Instagram posts

61,908

Twitter followers 		

7,377

Queensland’s
largest marketplace
Allocated retail spaces

552

Companies			

345

Food and beverage outlets

121

Commercial outlets		

310

Showbag stands		

20

Rides and games		

121

Photography					1,230

In the classroom

Stud Beef					1,110

Ekka Learning Trail
booklets distributed		

8,000

Kids participated in
Street Science 		

15,000

Kids participated in
Get Kids Cooking		

1,547

Creative Art & Craft				995
Cookery					993
Painting and Drawing			898
Education on Show				695

Queensland’s
largest classroom
Tens of thousands of children converged on the Agricultural Hall at
Ekka, to be inspired, educated and entertained.
In 2016, the Ag Hall featured a new interactive rural journey for
children, to help the next generation understand that everything starts
with agriculture, from the food they eat to the clothes they wear.
The activities included a cooking class using fresh and healthy
ingredients, an interactive display to teach children about the grain to
flour process, precision farming with peddle tractors and a farmers
patch where kids could dig up and identify different vegetables.
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Also taking part in the learning activities in the Ag Hall were
thousands of students from 22 primary and secondary schools from
south-east Queensland and northern New South Wales, who came
to the show with their teachers on Ekka’s dedicated school days.
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a passion
for produce
Royal Queensland Food & Wine Show

Sweet victory
A “unique” dark chocolate gelato from Brisbane
took top honours at the 2016 RQFWS Ice
Cream, Gelato and Sorbet Competition.
Milani House of Gelato, from Hamilton,
whipped the field of 145 entries to win Grand
Champion Ice Cream, Gelato or Sorbet of
Show, along with taking home five of the six
champion awards.
While Berrys Creek Gourmet Cheese from
Victoria claimed Grand Champion Dairy
Product of Show for the second year in a row
with their Riverine Blue, made from buffalo milk.

Overview
The prestigious Royal Queensland Food
& Wine Show (RQFWS) is dedicated to
celebrating Australia’s finest produce and
continues to unearth the nation’s top food and
wine products, year after year.
In 2016, the RQFWS attracted more than 3,700
entries across seven major competitions - the
Cheese and Dairy Produce Show; Ice Cream,
Gelato and Sorbet Competition; Branded Beef
Competition; Branded Lamb Competition;
Royal Queensland Wine Show; Sausage King
and Best Butchers Burger Competition and the
Ham, Bacon and Smallgoods Competition.
The Branded Beef and Lamb Competitions
are regarded as the most coveted and
comprehensive of their kind, with combined
entries up 33 per cent over the past two years.
The Cheese and Dairy Produce Show and Ice
Cream, Gelato and Sorbet Competition also
continue to grow, with the overall number of
entries received in 2016, slightly up on 2015.
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Steaking its claim
A Darling Downs Wagyu confirmed that Queensland produces
some of the best beef in the world, taking out the title of
Australia’s best steak for the second year in a row at the 2016
RQFWS Branded Beef Competition.
The “rich, juicy” Darling Downs Wagyu, produced by
Australian Agricultural Company (AACo), grilled 45 other
entrants to claim the coveted John Kilroy Cha Cha Char
Grand Champion Branded Beef of Show.
While the title of Champion Branded Lamb of Show
was taken out by Sanger Australia, based in
New South Wales, for its Mr Lamb product.

2016 RNA Annual Report

23

Number of entries
Cheese and Dairy Produce

467

Ice Cream, Gelato and Sorbet

145

Branded Beef

45

Branded Lamb

22
1,801

Wine

134

Ham, Bacon and Smallgoods
Sausage King and
Best Butchers Burger

1,088

Australia’s finest
wine sparkles
A Tasmanian wine made history in 2016, by
becoming the first sparkling to take out The
Courier-Mail Grand Champion Wine of Show
at the Royal Queensland Wine Show (RQWS).
The quality of the House of Arras 2007 Grand
Vintage was described by Chief Judge David
Bicknell as being “up there with some of the
great champagne houses.”

A night of
Grape Grazing
More than 660 people enjoyed sampling the nation’s finest wines, at the second ever RQFWS
‘Grape Grazing by Night - Celebrating Australian Wine’ event.
Held at the Brisbane Showgrounds in July, the wine enthusiasts tasted their way through more than
1,800 top drops, including the award-winners from the new vintage of season.
The exceptional wines were complemented by award-winning produce from the RQFWS, including
gourmet beef rolls, lamb cutlets and gold medal-winning cheeses.
The first Grape Grazing by Night event was held in 2015, with ticket sales up 24 per cent in 2016.
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2016 Grand
Champions
Wine

While the historic Stodart Trophy,
for Best Young Red of Show, went
to Yabby Lake in the Mornington
Peninsula for their 2015 Single
Vineyard Pinot Noir.

THE COURIER-MAIL GRAND
CHAMPION WINE OF SHOW
House of Arras - 2007 Grand Vintage

It was the first time in recent
history a pinot noir had taken out
the Stodart Trophy, with shiraz
usually dominating.

THE JOHN KILROY CHA CHA CHAR
GRAND CHAMPION BRANDED BEEF OF SHOW
Australian Agricultural Company Darling Downs Wagyu

In 2016, a total of 1,801
entries were received from
243 wineries in some of
Australia’s top wine regions
including the Barossa Valley,
Yarra Valley, Hunter Valley,
Margaret River, Tasmania
and the Granite Belt in
Queensland.

Branded Lamb

The top drops were tasted
by a 26 strong panel of
expert judges, led for the
first time by renowned
winemaker Mr Bicknell, who
took over the chief judging
role from PJ Charteris.

Branded Beef

CHAMPION BRANDED LAMB OF SHOW
Sanger Australia – Mr Lamb

Cheese and Dairy Produce
GRAND CHAMPION DAIRY PRODUCT OF SHOW
Berrys Creek Gourmet Cheese – Riverine Blue

Ice Cream, Gelato and Sorbet
MAJORS GROUP GRAND CHAMPION
ICE CREAM, GELATO OR SORBET OF SHOW
Milani House of Gelato - Dark Chocolate Gelato

2016 RNA Annual Report
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our business

Placemaking

Overview
The $2.9 billion, 15 year Brisbane
Showgrounds Regeneration Project is one
of the largest mixed-use, urban regeneration
projects in Australia.

The Green

The Yards

Kings Co-op

The Green is Lendlease’s first residential
apartment building within the Brisbane
Showgrounds. Residents moved into The
Green in September, 2015. Designed by
Cox Rayner, The Green is the perfect mix of
urban life with an emphasis on green space.

The Yards are the newest residential
apartments at the Brisbane Showgrounds.
They were designed by award-winning
architects Hayball, to embrace and reflect
the industrial, rural and urban heritage of
this historical precinct. The Yards has 401
residences across its towers and 11 terraces.
The first residents will move in by mid-2017.

Kings Co-op is a retail concept with a mix
of uses including food and beverage and
childcare. It is being built on land bordered
by Gregory Terrace, King Street, Machinery
Street and Alexandria Lane, and will be
supported by a five level, 375 bay car park.
Construction on Kings Co-op and its car
park got underway post Ekka, 2016, and is
expected to be complete by mid-2017.

Once complete, more than 15,000 people will
live, work and play each day at the Brisbane
Showgrounds, which is fast becoming
Queensland’s most prominent lifestyle and
events precinct.
The continued revitalisation of the
Showgrounds generates year round vitality
throughout the precinct, while ensuring the
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) remains on
the site where it all began in 1876.
Stage one of the project, which commenced
in 2011 and is now complete, saw the
construction of the state-of-the-art Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal ICC)

and Plaza.
The RNA and project partner Lendlease
then unveiled stage two of the project in
2014, which has seen the construction
and completion of The Green residential
apartments and commercial tower Kingsgate;
construction commencing on The Yards
residential apartments; and the construction
and opening of the four and a half star
Rydges Hotel. Stage two also included
the development of King Street and the
progressive opening of food and retail outlets,
which is ongoing.
Stage three of the project got underway post
Ekka in August, 2016, with construction
commencing on retail concept Kings Coop and its multi-storey car park. They are
expected to be complete by Ekka 2017.

2016
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King Street

Rydges

5 King

Kingsgate

King Street is a vibrant retail and dining
hub linking St Pauls Terrace and Gregory
Terrace. Construction commenced in 2014,
with the street opening to traffic in February,
2016. Retailers started progressively
opening in 2016 and will continue to open
throughout 2017. King Street features wide
footpaths to enhance street dining.

The new four and a half star Rydges Hotel
opened in February, 2016. The international
hotel was developed by a consortium
comprising Phillip Wolanski’s Denwol
Group of Sydney and Stewart Baron’s
Baron Corporation of Melbourne. The $50
million hotel includes 208 rooms,
the Six Acres Restaurant, the Paddock Bar,
a swimming pool and a gym.

Construction of 5 King - the world's largest
timber building – will commence in July
2017. Designed by architect Bates Smart
and at a height of almost 45 metres, the
office building in King Street will be the
largest engineered timber office building by
gross floor area in the world. Construction is
expected to be complete by mid-2019.

Kingsgate is a commercial building on
the corner of King Street and St Pauls
Terrace, which opened for business in June
2015. The nine storey building is home to
the Lendlease offices and several other
companies, with ground floor retail.
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2016 was a major year for the project, with
many stage two development milestones
reached. February saw the opening of the four
and a half star Rydges Hotel, which for the
first time provided onsite accommodation for
Royal Queensland Show (Ekka) visitors, Royal
ICC and Brisbane Showgrounds guests, and
the general public. King Street also opened
to traffic in February, linking St Pauls Terrace
and Gregory Terrace. Another milestone for
the street was the progressive opening of
restaurants from August to November, which
included an Italian restaurant, fresh sushi and
Korean fried chicken. In late August following
Ekka, stage three of the project got underway,
with construction beginning on retail concept
Kings Co-op and its multi-storey car park.

2016 works:
•

The four and a half star Rydges Hotel,
including the Paddock Bar and Six Acres
restaurant, opened in February

•

King Street opened to traffic in
February, linking St Pauls Terrace and
Gregory Terrace

•

More restaurants opened on King Street
between August and November - the
George Bar and Bistro, Fat Dumpling,
Sushi & Nori, Hello Chicken and Il Verde

•

Construction commenced on retail
concept Kings Co-op and its 375 bay,
multi-storey car park, post Ekka

•

The stormwater tank (five Olympic
swimming pools) was completed in July

•

The re-alignment and augmentation of
the sewer was completed in December

2016 RNA Annual Report
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Key facts

2017 planned works*

Location

Construction of the five level, 375 bay Kings Co-op
car park to be complete mid-year

Gregory Terrace, Bowen Hills, Brisbane, Australia - 1.5 kilometres from the CBD.

Investment

Retail concept Kings Co-op to be open by the end of the year

The project value of new residential/commercial/retail development is estimated at $2.9 billion. This is
funded primarily by Lendlease and through a $65 million loan from the Queensland Treasury Corporation.

A childcare centre to be operating in Kings Co-op
by the end of the year

Job Creation
The project is supporting Brisbane’s future economic and population growth by creating more than
2,000 jobs over the life of the project.

The first residents to move into apartments at
The Yards mid-year

Economic Benefits

Construction to begin on new commercial building (5 King)
mid-year. It will be the world's largest timber building

The regeneration project delivers an estimate of $300 million per year in economic benefits
to Queensland.

Work on the Large Animal Pavilion to commence post Ekka

Size
22 hectares and represents the largest Brownfield development of its kind in Australia.
The project includes 340,000m2 of new residential, commercial and retail buildings, together with an
additional 76,000m2 of new development on RNA retained land.

The new Gate 5 and 5a to be constructed by early August
Oval 2 and surrounding areas upgrade to commence
post Ekka

Significance

The creation of Alexandria Park, and Building 8 upgrade,
to begin post Ekka

The world-class regeneration of a famous landmark, synonymous with Queensland’s social heritage
and culture, represents an historic milestone for Brisbane. It’s not simply an urban renewal but
rather a transformation of 22 hectares, 1.5 kilometres from the CBD, into a vibrant year round
destination. For the RNA and Lendlease, this once in a lifetime collaboration signals an
opportunity to build a legacy for future generations to enjoy, by ensuring the iconic Ekka
remains at its rightful birthplace while giving the Brisbane Showgrounds the facelift it richly
deserves. The regeneration project will ensure the Brisbane Showgrounds becomes
the destination for fashion, design, lifestyle and culture, hosting world-class events
and shows all year round.

More retailers to open progressively on King Street
throughout the year
*numbers and timeframes are estimates only

Regeneration timeline
APR 2011

AUG 2012

DEC 2012

MAR 2013

OCT 2013

SEP 2014

NOV 2014

JAN 2015

APR 2015

JUN 2015

SEP 2015

FEB 2016

AUG 2016

SEPT 2016

OCT 2016

NOV 2016

Construction began

Ground floor of

Removal of the

Royal ICC opens for

Completion of the

Demolition of

Construction

Construction

Construction

Kingsgate

First residents move

Four and a half

Construction begins

Restaurant Sushi

Restaurant

Food van takeaway

on transforming the

Royal ICC opened

RNA Administration

its first events

Plaza

Commerce Building

commenced on

commenced on

commenced on

commercial sector

into The Green

star Rydges hotel,

on Kings Co-op – a

& Nori opens on

Il Verde opens on

and eat-in concept,

Industrial Pavilion

for exhibition space

Building

The Yards

opens for business

including the

social, creative and

King Street

King Street

Hello Chicken,

at Ekka 2012

The Yards

four and a half star

into the world-

Construction

King Street, the

Construction on

commenced on K1,

apartments released

new 300m street

Rydges Hotel

residential

Paddock Bar and

community retail

opens on

the new 7,000m2

the first commercial

for sale

apartments

Six Acres restaurant,

concept

King Street

$7.7 million Plaza

tower at Kingsgate

Terrace and Gregory

opens for business

commenced

commercial

Terrace

Restaurants The

King Street opens

George and Fat

‘South Yard’

to traffic and links St

Dumpling open on

apartments released

Pauls Terrace and

King Street

for sale

Gregory Terrace

class $59 million
Royal International
Convention Centre
(Royal ICC)

sector and on The
Green residential
apartments

Brisbane record set
when 160 out of the
208 ‘North Yard’
apartments sold
within four hours

that links St Paul’s

(four months ahead
of schedule)
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Royal ICC fast facts
The world-class Royal ICC opened in March, 2013

your venue
Royal International Convention Centre
The $59 million state-of-the-art Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal ICC)
and 7,000m2 Plaza is proving a successful
investment for the RNA, hosting 184 events
in 2016.
Designed by Cox Rayner Architects and
constructed by Lendlease, the Royal ICC
celebrates the building’s history while
showcasing modern, multi-functional and
flexible spaces which can accommodate up
to 3,000 people.

The Royal ICC hosted many high profile
events in 2016 including the PwC Federal
Budget Breakfast attended by former
Australian Prime Minister John Howard;
the Advance Queensland Innovation and
Investment Summit opened by Premier
Annastacia Palaszczuk; and the 2016 XXXX
Maroons Series Launch attended by rugby
league legend Gary Belcher.

Overview
The historic Brisbane Showgrounds is a worldclass events precinct, offering the largest and
most versatile range of indoor and outdoor
venues in Queensland.
It’s home to the state-of-the-art Royal
International Convention Centre (Royal ICC)
and hosts a number of popular festivals and
events each year, including Queensland’s
largest and most loved annual event - the Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka).
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One of the key reasons for the 15 year, $2.9
billion Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration
Project is to generate year-round vitality
throughout the precinct, for use by the
community.
This has been evident throughout 2016,
with almost one million people visiting the
Showgrounds to attend more than 255 events
– an increase of almost 40 events on 2015.

The two-level building features three flexible halls, seven adaptable
meeting rooms, two boardrooms and an open foyer
Its custom built operable ceiling grid system creates unique theming
opportunities for clients
It has a 1,200m2 commercial kitchen featuring world-class catering
facilities, including Air-O-Steam Combi Ovens which are capable of
serving 1,200 plates in 20 minutes
It’s the only centre in Australia that can offer clients award-winning food
and wine carefully selected from the Royal Queensland Food and
Wine Show (RQFWS) and iconic Ekka
The Royal ICC fronts a revitalised 7,000m2 Plaza, providing an
additional 1,500m2 of exhibition space for events

Great minds gather
Some of the world’s greatest minds put their
heads together at the Royal ICC in April, for
the Advance Queensland Innovation and
Investment Summit.
The two day event, opened by Premier
Annastacia Palaszczuk, connected business
leaders, investors, entrepreneurs, government
and industry leaders, in a bid to help
commercialise Queensland ideas to the world.

In addition to the two day program, an
interactive culinary event was held the night
before the summit opened, with world
famous Iron Chef Hiroyuki Sakai and celebrity
chefs Matt Golinski and Alastair McLeod
cooking up six courses in the Royal ICC’s
world-class kitchen.
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MMA event
a knockout
Amateur fighters went to battle in December,
with the Royal ICC hosting its first Aftershock
mixed martial arts (MMA) fight card.
Hundreds of people punched into the Royal
ICC for Aftershock 27: Gods of War, to watch
10 bouts including Aftershock’s first female
headliner - Kaela ‘Tiger’ Banney (Australia)
versus Ibu Takamori (Japan).

Footy fever
Queenslanders found out who would make
up the mighty Maroons in May, with the State
of Origin team announced at the 2016 XXXX
Maroons Series Launch at the Royal ICC.
Around 270 guests attended the highly
anticipated launch, including past Queensland

rugby league greats Gary Belcher,
Wendell Sailor and Petero Civoniceva.
The stars of Queensland rugby league
were treated to a three-course dinner
menu, featuring some RQFWS
award-winning produce.

Largest attended
events at the Royal ICC*
TSXPO

20,000 guests

Scales and Tails Expo
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5,500 guests

Gold Coast Airport Marathon:
Brisbane Check-in Centre

4,500 guests

Lego Expo Brisbane

4,400 guests

Your Local Wedding
Guide Bridal Expo (January)

3,000 guests

PwC Federal
Budget Breakfast

1,800 guests

UQ EUS Ball

1,600 guests

Your Local Wedding
Guide Bridal Expo (July)

1,500 guests

QLD Education
Resources Expo

1,500 guests

Frontline Appeal Dinner

1,200 guests

Unique food experience
The Royal ICC chefs continued to work directly with
Australian farmers, when sourcing produce for their 2016 menus.
The close relationships have been formed through our
prestigious Royal Queensland Food and Wine Show (RQFWS)
and iconic Royal Queensland Show (Ekka).
The Royal ICC is the only venue in the country that can offer
clients gold, silver and bronze medal-winning food and wine,
carefully selected from these two competitions.
Some of the stars of the menu included the 2016
medal-winning ‘Tasmanian Royal Lamb,’ the award-winning
JBS Australia ‘Swift Premium Striploin’ from Western Queensland,
along with a selection of trophy winning wines, cheeses
and ice creams.
The Royal ICC chefs also noticed a rise in the popularity
of secondary cuts in 2016, with slow cooked beef cheeks,
braised short ribs and juicy lamb rump popular menu
choices with clients.

*numbers are approximate
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Brisbane
Showgrounds
Precinct
Brisbane Showgrounds
The Brisbane Showgrounds has proved itself
as the destination for some of Brisbane’s
most popular outdoor events and festivals.
More than 200,000 people attended 75
events at the Showgrounds in 2016,
including the largest event, the Queensland
Caravan, Camping and Touring Supershow
which attracted more than 50,000 people.
The Brisbane Showgrounds also hosted
many popular festivals in 2016, including
Australia’s largest German festival,
Oktoberfest Brisbane; the Labour Day
Festival attracting around 25,000 people; and
St Jerome’s Laneway Festival featuring some
of the country’s hottest music acts.
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Caravan
supershow rolls in

Animal rescue day
sets tails wagging

Oktoberfest, from
Music
Bavaria to Brisvegas festival fever

More than 50,000 people flocked to the
Brisbane Showgrounds in June, for the
Queensland Caravan, Camping and
Touring Supershow.

More than 200 animals found their fur-ever
homes at the Brisbane Showgrounds in
September, as part of the RSPCA’s Big
Adopt Out.

Australia’s largest German festival once again
transformed the Brisbane Showgrounds into a
mini Bavaria.

Thousands of people converged on the
Brisbane Showgrounds in late 2016, to rock
out to their favourite tunes.

The event, held over six days, featured more
than 250 exhibitors showcasing the latest
in caravans, motorhomes, camper trailers,
slide-ons and camping accessories.

The annual event, which has been held at
the Showgrounds since 2013, aimed to
house both cats and dogs from more than 30
animal rescue groups.

Almost 35,000 people donned their Dirndl and
Lederhosen over two weekends in October, at
the popular Oktoberfest Brisbane.

St Jerome’s Laneway Festival attracted
almost 14,000 people in February, while
1,500 people attended Gizzfest, featuring
ARIA award-winning rock band King Gizzard
and the Lizard Wizard, in late November.

The popular event has been setting
up camp at the Showgrounds for 38
consecutive years.

Around 6,000 people browsed the many
different breeds of animals under The
Marquee, to find their paw-fect companion.

The event featured plenty of traditional folk
music, an authentic showcase of German
cuisine including pretzels and pork knuckles,
specially brewed beers and even rides.
It was the ninth year Oktoberfest Brisbane had
been held at the Showgrounds.

Dance festival, HARD Summer Australia,
then kicked off at the Showgrounds in
early December, with around 5,000 people
checking out the hot line-up.
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Largest attended events at the Brisbane Showgrounds*
Queensland Caravan, Camping and Touring Supershow

51,000

Oktoberfest Brisbane

34,500

National 4x4 Outdoors Show & Fishing & Boating Expo

25,000

Labour Day Festival

25,000

Pre-Christmas Caravan Sale

15,000

St. Jerome’s Laneway Festival Brisbane

13,500

Listen Out Egress

10,000

Hillsong Easter Mass

8,200

RSPCA Big Adopt Out

6,000

Etsy Made Local

6,000
*numbers are approximate

More than 60 events, attended by a total
of around 85,000 people, were staged at
venues across the Showgrounds and Royal
ICC between October and mid-December.

Patron

Honorary Councillors

His Excellency
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Governor of Queensland
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D G Thomas
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D L O’Connor and A G Adnam
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W T E Rothwell

Council

Bumper quarter
The lead-up to Christmas saw a bumper
quarter for the Brisbane Showgrounds.

office bearers

One of the largest events was Oktoberfest
Brisbane, with the others including gala
dinners, conferences, meetings and of
course Christmas parties.
Showgrounds staff were kept busy in
November, with 35 events held, making it the
busiest month of the year.

E T G Allen
L J Blumel
R M Bower
D C Chandler
J Cotter
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Chief Executive
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Roll the dice & land
on the Showgrounds

G G Kieseker

Thanks to the overwhelming support of
Queenslanders, the historic Brisbane
Showgrounds, home of the much-loved Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka), made it onto the
Brisbane Monopoly board.

D A McInnes

J Evans of Pitcher Partners

R E McLay

ABN 41 417 513 726

The new Brisbane themed Monopoly board
was launched in mid-October, with the
Showgrounds and Ekka securing a spot as
one of the three light blue squares.
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A social media campaign
was launched by Brisbane
Monopoly in early 2016,
calling for locals to
vote for their favourite
locations, landmarks and
venues, with thousands
supporting the Brisbane
Showgrounds
and Ekka.

P C Little AM
S E McDonald

G J Noller
W L Roberts
C J Sinclair

Auditor
Brisbane Showgrounds
600 Gregory Terrace, Bowen Hills Queensland 4006
Locked Bag 1010, Albion Queensland 4101
Telephone: +61 7 3253 3900
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Council
Governance

David Thomas

Daniel (Dan) L O’Connor

BCom LLB Hons Qld MAICD

DipTchng (BCAE) BEdSt (Qld) LLB (QUT)
LLM (Qld) FAIM MAICD

President

David Thomas became the RNA President
in 2011 after serving on the Council for nine
years, the last two as Senior Vice-President.
He participates in all activities of the association and is Chair of the
Executive Committee and of the Council Nominations Committee.
Following Council convention, as President he is not a member of
any council or show committee. David is a Justice of the Supreme
Court of Queensland, having previously been senior partner at Minter
Ellison Lawyers in Brisbane, with more than 30 years’ experience
as a lawyer. From 2012 to October 2014 he served as the Deputy
President of the Royal Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth
(RASC) and remains a Trustee of the RASC. He is Deputy Chair
of Queensland Ballet and a Director of The Society of The Sacred
Advent Schools Pty Ltd, which is the trustee of St Margaret’s and St
Aidan’s Anglican Girls Schools. This year he retired as Chair of the
Queensland Maritime Museum.

Senior Vice-President

Dan O’Connor is Deputy President of the
Industrial Court of Queensland and a Deputy
President of the Queensland Industrial Relations Commission.
He has been an RNA Councillor since 2000, serving as Honorary
Treasurer and Junior Vice-President before being elected Senior
Vice-President in September, 2011. He is actively involved in the
RNA and oversees many aspects of show planning including Chair
of the Entertainment, and Appeals and Disciplinary Committees
and a member of the House and In-Show Catering, Nominations,
Horse and Arena, and Sheep Dog Trials Committees. He is a former
Trustee of The Royal Agricultural Society of the Commonwealth and
is involved in a number of not-for-profit organisations, in particular
a Trustee of the Edinburgh Declaration Trust, a member of the
Governing Council of the Judicial Conference of Australia and
Chairman of the Council of the Anglican Church Grammar School.

Angus G Adnam

Junior Vice-President
Managing Director of AAA Livestock
Services Pty Ltd, Angus Adnam has
brought a wealth of experience and energy
to the RNA Council since his appointment
in November, 2005. An RNA Steward and Honorary Council
Steward since 1978, he was elected Junior Vice-President in
September 2011 and is a member of the Beef and Prime Cattle
Committee. He is Chair of the Wine Show, House and Industry
and Sponsorship Committees.
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Honorary Treasurer
BA, FCA, MAICD
Tim Rothwell joined the RNA Council in
October, 2013. He is currently a member of
the Executive, Audit, Development, Finance,
HR and Remuneration, Industry and Sponsorship, and Dairy Cattle
Committees. He was Chief Financial Officer of Brisbane Airport
Corporation for 16 years. He is a board member and chair of the
Board Audit and Risk Committee of Airservices Australia and has
extensive experience in general, financial, project, property and event
management and board matters. He is on the Audit and Finance
Committee of Wesley Mission Queensland, having been its inaugural
chair and a board member for 10 years.

Professor Peter Little AM

Catherine Sinclair

LLB LLM Qld PhD Bond FAIM FCPA

BSc MA Illinois DUniv FAICD FAIM

Peter Little was elected to the RNA Council
in March, 2009, and is a member of the
Executive, Audit, Development, Finance,
Future Directions, and Industry and
Sponsorship Committees. He is also Chair
of the Education and the Future and Digital Strategy, and HR and
Remuneration Committees. He is an Emeritus Professor at the
Queensland University of Technology, formerly a Deputy ViceChancellor, and holds a Bachelor of Laws and Master of Laws from
the University of Queensland and PhD from Bond University Law
School. He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management,
Fellow of CPA Australia, and Fellow of Queensland Academy of Arts
and Sciences. He is a Director of Ormiston College, consultant to
McCullough Robertson Lawyers Brisbane, a Director of the RACQ
Foundation Pty Ltd and is a member of the Governing Committee of
the Queensland Business Leaders Hall of Fame.
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Tim Rothwell

Catherine Sinclair joined the RNA Council
in 2007, bringing extensive professional
experience in the corporate sector. She has
specific experience as a Board Director in
transport, defence and the arts and has
been a tribunal member in the primary industry sector. Having a
rural background, she is committed to ensuring a vibrant future for
the RNA. She is a member of the Executive, Ekka Show Legend,
Finance, and Industry and Sponsorship Committees and Chair of
the Bush Poetry Committee. Her current positions include Chair of
the Residential Tenancies Authority, Director of the National Board of
CEDA, and Director of The Consultancy Bureau Pty Ltd. Ms Sinclair
was awarded an Honorary Degree of Doctor of the University by
Griffith University in 2014 and a Centenary Medal in 2001.
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Governance
Liz Allen

BA, Dip Ag Admin
A Steward and Honorary Council Steward in
the Stud Beef section since 2002, Ms Allen
was elected to Council in 2014. She is a
member of the Animal Boulevard, Beef Cattle
and Meat Hall, Dairy Cattle, Dairy Goats, and
Joint Stock Committees. She is also Chair of the Quilts Committee.
Ms Allen, in partnership with family, operates a large-scale stud and
commercial Santa Gertrudis beef operation at Blackall. She brings
extensive knowledge of the beef industry and event management to
Council through her previous roles with the RNA, Meat and Livestock
Australia, AgForce Queensland and Qld Primary Industries Week Inc.

Lionel J Blumel
Lionel Blumel has been involved with the
RNA as a Steward since 1986 and was
elected to the RNA Council in November,
2006. He is Chair of the Canine and Cats
Committees and is a member of the
Charities, Ekka Show Legend, Entries,
Space and Letting, Veterinary and Biosecurity and Animal Welfare,
Animal Boulevard, and Joint Stock Committees. Mr Blumel is a
Director of Dogs Queensland and is a working member of the
Samford Show Society and active member of his local community
groups. As a retired building construction project manager with
43 years’ experience, prior to retirement he managed a number of
natural disaster recovery projects across Queensland.

Rod Bower
B. App. Sci. (Food Tech) MAIFST
Rod Bower joined the RNA Council in
October, 2015, and is a member of the
Entertainment, Future Directions, Horse
and Arena, and Joint Stock Committees.
He is a long standing member of the RNA
and has been a Ring Steward and Honorary Council Steward in
the Horse and Arena section for more than 30 years. He served
as the Chairman of the inaugural Future Directions Committee
and has exhibited and stewarded in horse and cattle sections at a
number of Queensland and interstate shows. Mr Bower, a qualified
Food Technologist, is Operations Manager for a family owned food
manufacturing business producing products for national and export
markets. He has some 24 years’ experience in food manufacturing
and management, encompassing human resources, compliance,
information technology, food safety and quality systems.

Don Chandler
B. Bus, Member AICD
Don Chandler joined the RNA Council in June,
2015. He is currently a Partner of national
firm, Crestone Wealth Management. Crestone
evolved following the successful buyout of
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UBS Wealth Management in Australia in June, 2016. Mr Chandler
joined UBS Wealth in November 2012, after a 21 year career with
Ord Minnett. During his career, Mr Chandler has provided investment
advice to a broad range of private and wholesale investors. He and his
family have had a long association with the RNA and he is a member
of the Audit, Charities, Industry and Sponsorship, and Pisciculture
Committees. Mr Chandler is also Chair of the Education on Show and
Poultry, Pigeons, Birds and Eggs Committees. He is a former President
of The Brookfield Show Society and is a Director of the Queensland
Club Foundation, Chairman of the Brookfield Recreation Reserve
Trust and a Non-Executive Chairman of a private Queensland family’s
investment interests.

John Cotter
John Cotter was appointed to the RNA
Council in July, 2016. He has a long
association with the RNA having been
a junior exhibitor, Beef and Woodchop
Steward and Honorary Council Steward,
Chair of the Future Directions Committee
and a member of the Woodchop Committee and Marketing and
Sponsorship Committee. Mr Cotter is the Chair of a family office
with health, resources and agricultural investments and serves as a
non-executive director on boards in the infrastructure sector. He is
currently a member of the Appeals and Disciplinary, and Industry and
Sponsorship Committees and Chair of the Woodchop Committee.

Ian Ferguson
BA Qld JP (Qual)
Ian Ferguson is a long standing member of
the RNA, joining the Council in 2007, after
previously serving as an Honorary Ring
Steward and Honorary Council Steward. He
is currently the Chair of the Entries, Space
and Letting, and Horse and Arena Committees. He also serves on
the Entertainment, Appeals and Disciplinary, HR and Remuneration,
Veterinary, Biosecurity and Animal Welfare, Young Judges, and Joint
Stock Committees. In 2015, he was appointed Ekka Ringmaster. Mr
Ferguson retired as an Inspector of Police at the Ethical Standards
Command and now undertakes a range of community activities. He
has a broad background of community involvement and is currently
Chairperson of Carindale PCYC.

Ian Galloway
Ian Galloway joined the RNA Council in
October, 2014. Mr Galloway, a respected
stud cattle breeder from Roma, has served as
President of the Australian Hereford Society,
Chairman of the Brangus World Congress and
judged cattle in Royal Shows across Australia,
plus at international competitions. He’s currently a member of the
RNA’s Beef and Dairy Cattle Committees. Mr Galloway operates the
Cootharaba Hereford, Duarran Brangus and Red Angus studs, plus
the Cootharaba Bonsmara Stud. The Cootharaba Hereford stud is
Australia’s oldest - founded in 1926 by Ian’s grandfather JJ Galloway.

Michael N Grieve
BEd NT DipEd BCAE
Michael Grieve was elected to the RNA
Council in September, 2006. He is an
education professional and Thoroughbred
breeder and is Chair of the RNA’s Charities
Committee. Outside of the RNA, he is a
committee member and Ringmaster of the Ipswich Show Society and
executive member of the Thoroughbred Breeders of Qld.

Susan J Hennessey
Susan Hennessey brings to the RNA Council
considerable expertise in the area of fine arts and
management. As an RNA exhibitor and Steward
for many years, she was elected to the RNA
Council in 2001. The first female RNA Councillor
elected to the Executive Committee, serving
on this committee from 2006 to 2010, she is a past member of the
Budget and Finance, and Marketing and Sponsorship Committees. She
currently Chairs the Fine Arts and Ekka Show Legend Committees and is
a member of the House and In-Show Catering, Leasing and Allocation,
Entertainment, Young Judges and HR and Remuneration Committees.

Gary Kieseker
Dip.T B.Ed
Gary Kieseker was appointed to the RNA
Council in November, 2012, after working
alongside the association in a consultancy
position for the Royal International Convention
Centre. Mr Kieseker has had a distinguished
career in international hotel management, convention management
and tourism education and training. He is a leader in strategic human
resource management and has held senior executive management
positions with prominent international hotels, including Mandarin
Oriental Hotel Group and Oberoi Hotels International. His expertise
and career has spanned the globe, taking him to the United States,
China, Russia, South Africa, Singapore, Indonesia, Fiji, Malaysia, Hong
Kong, the Philippines, Taiwan and Thailand. For the past 10 years, Mr
Kieseker has been managing partner in the international consulting
company, PG International Consulting Pty Ltd. He is also currently
Chair of the RNA’s Agricultural Hall.

Susan McDonald
Susan McDonald was appointed to the RNA
Council in October, 2016. Ms McDonald is
Managing Director of Super Butcher, a retail
group of six stores and online butchers, serving
10,000 people a week in south-east Queensland.
Super Butcher is the retail arm of the McDonald
family’s cattle grazing and export business. With degrees in Commerce
and Economics, and as a registered CPA, she has more than 20 years
of experience in accountancy and business management. Ms McDonald
brings a wealth of expertise to the RNA, particularly in the beef supply chain
area and her knowledge of ‘paddock to plate’ retailing and production.

Duncan McInnes
Duncan McInnes was elected to the RNA
Council in November, 2011. He brings
extensive knowledge of the dairy industry
and is currently Chair of the Dairy Cattle
and Dairy Goats Committees. Mr McInnes,
in partnership with family, operates a large
dairy property ‘Inverclyde’ at Harrisville, as well as an agriculture and
lucerne farm. He is Chairman of Dairy Farmers Milk CoOp which
represents 400 members across Australia and spent 12 years as
Director of Australian Co-operative Foods. He is also a Councillor
for the Scenic Rim Regional Council and heavily involved with local
community organisations.

Robin McLay
Robin McLay joined the RNA Council in
October, 2015, and is Chair of the Flower
and Garden Committee. She brings
extensive business and horticulture industry
knowledge to the Council, through her past
experience in various industries including
agriculture, tourism, floristry, hospitality and horticulture. Ms McLay
owns and operates a successful award-winning garden centre,
which has been a NGIQ state winner for five consecutive years and
in 2015 won the NGIA National Retailer and Business of the year
and Best Garden Centre.

Gary Noller
A respected beef seed stock producer from
the Darling Downs, Gary Noller was elected
to the RNA Council in March, 2010. Before
becoming an RNA Councillor, he was an
active supporter of the association having
judged and exhibited at a number of Royal
Queensland Shows. Mr Noller is Chair of the RNA’s Beef Cattle and
Meat Hall, Joint Stock, and Young Judges Committees and is a
member of the Education and The Future and Digital Strategy, and
Entries Committees.

William Roberts
William Roberts is a stud merino sheep
and cattle producer who joined the RNA
Council in November, 2011, following years
of involvement at the Charleville Show
and the Sheep Spectacular in Barcaldine,
Goondiwindi and Toowoomba. He operates
his property, Victoria Downs in Morven. Mr Roberts is a serving
Councillor and former past President of the Queensland Merino
Stud Sheepbreeders’ Association Incorporated and past President
of the Australian Association of Stud Merino Breeders. He has been
involved in showing and judging merino sheep around Australia.
Mr Roberts is currently Chair of the RNA’s Fleece Breeds and Boer
Goats Committee.
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Management
Governance
Brendan Christou
Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

BBus QUT MBA Curtin CPA

BCom BEc CPA MAICD Comm Dec

Brendan Christou was appointed Chief
Executive of the RNA in 2012, after
serving as Deputy Chief Executive / Chief
Operating Officer since 2009. A Certified Practicing Accountant,
Mr Christou started at the RNA in 2004 as the association’s
Financial Controller. His previous experience spans across the
retail, engineering and financial services industries. He completed
his Master of Business Administration from Curtin University in
2008. Mr Christou is also a board member of the International
Association of Fairs and Expositions (IAFE) and is the President of
the Brisbane Development Association.

Veronica Carew

General Manager,
Communications
Veronica joined the RNA in April 2010, bringing
with her 18 years’ experience in media
and public relations. A strategic corporate
communications manager Veronica has 10 years’ experience in the
not-for-profit sector, at a state and national level, developing strategies
and campaigns to promote the interests of agriculture, education
and the over 50s in the media. Previously Veronica spent eight years
working as a journalist and editor in the Australian print media. In her
current role at the RNA, Veronica is responsible for developing and
implementing integrated communication strategies across traditional
and digital mediums, crisis management and public relations initiatives,
media and issues management, and the management of internal and
external communications.
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Andrew Moore

Andrew Moore joined the RNA in early 2015
as Chief Financial Officer. He is responsible
for the association’s financial management,
procurement, tax and regulatory compliance, insurance, information
technology and commercial aspects of the Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project. As a senior executive with over 25 years’
experience in financial and commercial management, business
development, capital raising, treasury operations and corporate
governance, Mr Moore brings a wealth of experience to the RNA.
His professional career spans publicly listed and private companies,
the not-for-profit sector and government enterprises across a
diverse range of industries including events, energy, mining, sport,
hospitality and education. Mr Moore is also an active member of the
Queensland surf lifesaving community.

Sujoy Dey

General Manager, Operations
Diploma of Hotel Management (First
Division), University of Delhi, Post-Diploma
Business and Hotel Management School,
Luzern Switzerland
Sujoy Dey joined the RNA in October, 2011, bringing with him
more than 25 years’ experience in the hotel and conventions
industries across Australasia. In his current role as General
Manager of Operations, his responsibility ranges from planning
and executing all events, to overseeing the set-up and operations
of the Brisbane Showgrounds and Royal ICC. Mr Dey has
previously been the Director of Operations for the Borneo
Convention Centre Kuching and had a 21 year career tenure with
the Adelaide Convention Centre.

Lloyd Dunn

Barbara Perrott

BEng (civil) QUT

BCom (HRM) Griffith Qld

Project Director –
RNA Redevelopment
Lloyd Dunn joined the RNA in February,
2010, in the position of Project Development
Manager and moved to Project Director - RNA Development in 2014.
Over the past seven years, he has led the Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project team in all aspects of the design and delivery
of significant RNA assets, as well as managed and coordinated the
project development with the development partner, Lendlease. Major
milestones of the $2.9 billion regeneration project have included
the approval of the masterplan and subsequent relevant Authority
coordination, completion of the $59 million Royal International
Convention Centre in 2013 and associated Public Realm spaces, the
completion of King Street in 2016 and the opening of the four and a
half star Rydges Hotel in 2016. Mr Dunn has an impressive diversified
background, with roles including Construction Management, Project
Management and Development Management for major organisations
including Fletcher Constructions Australia, Multiplex, Project Strategies
Australia, Austcorp and Stockland.

Stephen Galbraith

General Manager,
Royal Queensland Show
and Royal Queensland Food &
Wine Show
Stephen Galbraith joined the RNA in July,
2012, in the newly created position of General Manager, Royal
Queensland Show (Ekka) and Royal Queensland Food and Wine
Show (RQFWS). He has almost 20 years’ experience in the operation
and management of events, tourism and leisure attractions,
including Village Roadshow Theme Parks on the Gold Coast and
Asia’s Sunway Group - CEO of the leisure arm which included
theme, water and animal parks such as Sunway Lagoon in Kuala
Lumpur. Mr Galbraith has worked throughout Australia, Malaysia,
Singapore, Vietnam, Hong Kong, China and the Middle East.
His role with the iconic Ekka has been in operation and business
strategy management and development, to assist the rejuvenation of
Queensland’s largest and most loved annual event.

General Manager –
Human Resources
Barbara Perrott joined the RNA permanently
in December 2014, bringing with her 40 years
of experience in the public sector. Since 2012, she has provided
strategic and operational HR consulting services to the RNA, assisting
the organisation through a major period of growth and development.
Ms Perrott has worked at a senior level within the Queensland
Government, specialising in corporate services management, leading
organisational change, organisational development, human resource
management and shared corporate services. More recently, she has
provided extensive management consulting services to small/medium
organisations aimed at improving leadership, strategy, culture and
general management practices.

Jago Coyle

General Manager,
Venue Sales & Marketing
Jago Coyle joined the RNA in 2015, bringing
a depth of experience from the hotel and
events industries, both nationally and
internationally. Prior to being appointed to General Manager of Venue
Sales and Marketing at the RNA, Mr Coyle was the Director of Sales
and Marketing at both the Sofitel and Marriott Hotels in Brisbane,
Director of Sales and Marketing at the London Marriott and Executive
Apartments West India Quay, Canary Wharf London. He has also
had experience as a Deputy General Manager in hotels, a Director
of Rooms and Director of Food and Beverage in various hotels, but
started his professional life as a chef for eight years.
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The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland

Financial Report for the year ended 31 December 2016
The Councillors present their report together with the financial report of The Royal National Agricultural and
Industrial Association of Queensland (RNA) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and auditors report thereon.
The names of the Councillors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:

Council members

councillors’
report
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Year of
Appointment

Council meetings

Executive Committee meetings

Eligible to
attend

Number
attended

Eligible to
attend

Number
attended

7

7

6

5

7

7

7

7

Mr A G Adnam – Junior Vice President

2005

7

5

Ms E T G Allen

2014

7

7

Mr L J Blumel

2006

7

6

Mr R Bower

2015

7

7

Mr D Chandler

2015

7

7

Mr J Cotter (2)

2016

4

3

Mr R H Douglas (3)

2004

6

6

Mr I W Ferguson

2007

7

7

Mr I M Galloway

2014

7

7

Mr M N Grieve

2006

7

7

Mrs S J Hennessey

2001

7

7

Mr P Kesby (1)

2011

2

2

Mr G G Kieseker

2012

7

6

Prof P C Little AM

2009

7

7

Mr D A McInnes

2011

7

6

Ms S McDonald (4)

2016

1

1

Mrs R McLay

2015

7

6

Mr G J Noller

2010

7

7

Mr D L O’Connor – Senior Vice President

2000

7

7

Mr W L Roberts

2011

7

5

Mr W T Rothwell – Honorary Treasurer

2013

7

4

7

5

Ms C J Sinclair

2007

7

5

7

4

Mr D G Thomas – President

2002

7

7

7

7

Notes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Retired June 2016
Appointed July 2016
Retired October 2016
Appointed October 2016

The Councillors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
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Results and operations
The surplus of the association for the year amounted to $1,195,028
(2015 deficit: $3,600,472).
As in prior years, the results for 2016 have been significantly affected
by the realisation of asset sale proceeds from the first stages of the
redevelopment, offset by the continued recognition of Interest on the
loan and depreciation for the convention centre. These items do not
affect the working cash flow of the business. The critical measure
of Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA) was a surplus of $87,194 in the year (2015 deficit of
$348,944). This value excludes the redevelopment revenue and
expenses recognised of $5,846,619 net (2015: $6,383,197) and net
compensation revenue of $2,915,674 (2015: nil)
There were two compensation settlements were realised in the year.
Reduced venue rental occurred as a result of the cancellation of a
number of music festivals.
The closing cash position (including term deposits) of the RNA was
$3,209,817 (2015 $2,785,326). The RNA has established a working
capital facility with QTC of $3 million which was undrawn at year end.
The RNA cash position was anticipated as the RNA continues to
invest in the Redevelopment.

Company and strategy for achievement
The RNA’s mission is to celebrate and champion the essential role
agriculture plays in the everyday lives of Queenslanders.
The RNA’s vision focuses on the ongoing successful staging
of the Ekka at the Brisbane Showgrounds, establishing the
Brisbane Showgrounds and the Royal International Convention
Centre (Royal ICC) as Queensland’s leading events venues,
and transforming the Brisbane Showgrounds precinct into a
destination.
The RNA has also embarked on a redevelopment program to
transform the Showgrounds into a vibrant mixed use precinct that
is utilised all year round. The redevelopment will also provide the
RNA with new and improved exhibition facilities as well as other
income generating assets which form a significant part of the RNA
diversification strategy.

Principal activities

Councillors’ remuneration
Councillors’ receive no remuneration for their services.

Indemnification of Councillors
and Officers
The RNA has agreed to reimburse the reasonable costs (including
but not limited to legal fees) incurred by any current or past
Councillor or Officer in relation to the performance of his or her
duties as a Councillor or Officer of the RNA provided:
(i) the person is not charged with any offence, or if charged, is
subsequently acquitted of all charges;
(ii) any investigations or hearings do not reveal conduct by that
person which constitutes conduct which breaches that person’s
fiduciary relationship with the RNA whether that person is charged
or not or convicted or not;
(iii) the person’s conduct is not unbecoming of a person holding
the position, which that person held at the time of the conduct.
The level of such reimbursement is to be set by the
Executive Committee.
The RNA has paid insurance premiums for Councillors’ and Officers’
Insurance since the end of the previous year. The Councillors
have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or
the amount of the premium paid in respect of the Councillors’ and
Officers’ liability and legal expenses insurance contracts as such
disclosures is prohibited under the terms of the contract.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the members of
the Council.

Council member:
Justice D G Thomas ‑ President

Council member:
Mr W T Rothwell ‑ Honorary Treasurer

Dated this 22nd day of February 2017

The principal activity of the association is to provide facilities and
personnel to celebrate and champion the essential role agriculture
plays in the everyday lives of Queenslanders.
The RNA achieves its objectives via a number of means; however,
its primary method is through the staging of the Royal Queensland
Show in August each year. The Show is the state’s premier
exhibition of Queensland’s primary industries.
No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred
during the year.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of financial position

for the year ended 31 December 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Notes

2016

2015

Revenue

Notes

2016

2015

Current assets

Ground operations and venue rental

12,604,456

13,686,423

Cash and cash equivalents

4

3,209,817

2,785,326

Show operations

15,304,319

14,754,903

Receivables

5

3,417,568

5,242,171

400,397

432,235

Inventories

6

95,674

73,093

Redevelopment work in progress

9

879,391

461,193

Other assets

7

4,388,068

824,221

11,990,518

9,386,004

Membership subscription
Redevelopment income

3

11,187,652

11,224,937

Net compensation revenue

3

2,915,674

-

919,868

1,034,855

44,029,536

41,949,686

Other revenue
TOTAL REVENUE

Less: Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Non‑current assets
Receivables

5

6,546,359

6,112,094

Ground operations and venue costs

(6,909,538)

(7,834,867)

Intangible assets

8

31,954

184,752

Show operations costs

(4,736,427)

(4,944,907)

Redevelopment work in progress

9

7,346,369

7,863,285

(3,769,005)

(5,705,915)

Property, plant and equipment

10

72,538,293

75,291,806

(12,324,520)

(12,424,694)

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT ASSETS

86,462,975

89,451,937

(3,885,454)

(3,928,810)

TOTAL ASSETS

98,453,493

98,837,941

Showgrounds maintenance

(1,332,347)

(1,296,717)

Current liabilities

Other expenses

(3,839,014)

(3,756,175)

Payables

11

3,937,078

3,152,621

(5,341,033)

(4,841,740)

Borrowings

12

4,630,670

5,199,854

(42,137,338)

(44,733,825)

Provisions

13

1,874,932

1,824,317

1,195,028

(3,600,472)

Other liabilities

14

12,106,272

2,087,437

-

-

22,548,952

12,264,229

1,195,028

(3,600,472)

-

-

1,195,028

(3,600,472)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

3

Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

COGS – redevelopment
TOTAL EXPENSES
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT / (LOSS)

3

3

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non‑current liabilities
Borrowings

12

58,320,115

62,364,758

Provisions

13

660,032

654,501

Other liabilities

14

15,418,799

23,242,116

TOTAL NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES

74,398,946

86,261,375

TOTAL LIABILITIES

96,947,898

98,525,604

1,505,595

312,337

341,723

276,350

Accumulated surplus

1,163,872

35,987

TOTAL MEMBERS FUNDS

1,505,595

312,337

NET ASSETS

Members funds
Reserves

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Statement of members’ funds

Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2016

for the year ended 31 December 2016
Reserves

Accumulated

Total Equity

$

Surplus $

$

280,840

3,636,459

3,917,299

Profit / (Loss) for the year

-

(3,600,472)

(3,600,472)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

-

(3,600,472)

(3,600,472)

(4,490)

-

(4,490)

BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

276,350

35,987

312,337

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2016

276,350

35,987

312,337

Profit / (Loss) for the year

-

1,195,028

1,195,028

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

-

1,195,028

1,195,028

Movement in funds in year

(1,770)

-

(1,770)

Transfers to reserves

67,143

(67,143)

-

341,723

1,163,872

1,505,595

BALANCE AS AT 1 JANUARY 2015

Movement in funds in year

BALANCE AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes

2016

2015

33,217,371

29,059,230

(32,340,560)

(32,283,014)

50,690

23,469

(10,575)

(9,762)

916,926

(3,210,077)

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(900,819)

(1,068,729)

Payments for land held for resale

(395,562)

(682,262)

Proceeds from sale of land

11,902,547

-

Proceeds from (Payments to) Lend Lease

(2,202,000)

9,537,631

8,404,166

7,786,640

Principal and Interest paid on QTC Loan

(8,896,601)

(4,191,882)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(8,896,601)

(4,191,882)

Cash at beginning of the financial year

2,785,326

2,400,645

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held

424,491

384,681

3,209,817

2,785,326

Cash flow from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Finance costs
NET CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

17

Cash flow from investing activities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash flow from financing activities

Reconciliation of cash

CASH AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Held‑to‑maturity investments

(h) Land held for resale

Fixed term investments intended to be held to maturity are classified
as held‑to‑maturity investments. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Non‑current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Loans and receivables

Note 1: Statement of significant accounting policies
The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland (“the Association”) is a body corporate under the Royal
National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act
1971 (the “RNA Act”) as amended.
The financial report was approved by the Council as at the date of
the Councillors’ report.
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies
adopted by the association in the preparation and presentation of
the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently
applied, unless otherwise stated.

Capital grants and subsidies are recognised in profit or loss when
control is obtained, usually upon receipt of cash.
Income arising from the contribution of an asset to the entity is
recognised when, and only when, all of the following conditions have
been satisfied:
(i) the entity obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive
the contribution;
(ii) it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the
contribution will flow to the entity; and

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report

(iii) the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably.

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that
has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure Requirements, Interpretations and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and the RNA Act.

Contribution income is measured at the fair value of the contributions
received or receivable. If conditions attach to a contribution, the
recognition is deferred until the conditions are satisfied.

The RNA is a not‑for‑profit entity for the purpose of preparation of the
financial statements.
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ‑ Reduced
Disclosure Requirements
The financial statements of the RNA comply with the Australian
Accounting Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure Requirements as issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
New and amended standards adopted by the Association
None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January
2016 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current period or
any prior period and are not likely to affect future periods.
Historical Cost Convention
The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by revaluations to fair value for certain
classes of assets as described in the accounting policies.
(b) Revenue
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer
and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are
considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of the goods
to the customer.
Royal Queensland Show and Ground Operations and Venue revenue
is recognised in the year it is earned. Other revenue includes revenue
from car parking, special exhibition charges, signage revenue and
sundry revenue and is recognised on an accruals basis.
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the
delivery of the service to the customers.
Interest revenue is recognised when it becomes receivable on a
proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to
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All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax
(GST).
(c) Income tax
No provision for income tax has been raised as the association is
exempt from income tax under Section 50‑40 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the statement of financial position.
(e) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Inventories are primarily consumable stores used by the RNA
in its operations.

Loans and receivables are measured at fair value at inception and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.
Available‑for‑sale
Available‑for‑sale financial assets include any financial assets not
included in the above categories and are measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are taken directly to equity. The cumulative gain or loss is held in
equity until the financial asset is de‑recognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss held in equity is recognised in profit and loss.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade payables, other creditors and loans
from third parties.
Non‑derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost,
comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation.
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.
(g) Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair
value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Property
Property is measured on a cost basis.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is measured on a cost basis.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually
by the Council to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable
amount from those assets. The recoverable amount is assessed
on the basis of the expected net cash flows which will be received
from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The
expected net cash flows have been discounted to present values in
determining recoverable amounts.

(f) Financial instruments

Depreciation

Classification

The depreciable amounts of all fixed assets is depreciated over their
estimated useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held
ready for use. Land and the land component of any class of fixed
asset is not depreciated.

The RNA classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, loans and
receivables, held‑to‑maturity investments, and available‑for‑sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the instruments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

Freehold land and buildings are carried at cost or at independent or
Council valuation.

Non‑derivative financial instruments

Class of fixed asset

Non‑derivative financial instruments consist of investments in equity
and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.
Non‑derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs (if any), except for
instruments recorded at fair value through profit and loss. After initial
recognition, non‑derivative financial instruments are measured as
described below.

Depreciation rates

Depreciation basis

Buildings at cost

2‑26%

Straight line

Plant and
equipment at cost

2‑33%

Straight line

Sub‑stations
and electrical
equipment

5‑20%

Straight line

(i) Intangibles
Other intangibles
Intangible assets consist of computer software acquired to assist
in managing the operations of the Association. Software assets
are initially recorded at the purchase price. Other intangible assets
are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of 3‑5 years.
The balances are reviewed annually and any balance representing
future benefits the realisation of which is considered to be no longer
probable are written off.
(j) Impairment
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised but are tested
annually for impairment in accordance with AASB 136. Assets
subject to annual depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or circumstances arise that indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised where the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an asset is defined as the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.
(k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that
outflow can be reliably measured.
(l) Leases
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance
leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to
reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.
Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks
and benefits remain with the lessor, are recognised as an expense on
a straight‑line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives received under operating leases are recognised as
a liability and amortised on a straight‑line basis over the life of the
lease term.
(m) Employee benefits
(i) Short‑term employee benefit obligations
Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave,
accumulated sick leave and any other employee benefits expected
to be wholly settled within twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at their nominal amounts based on remuneration
rates which are expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
The expected cost of short‑term employee benefits in the form of
compensated absences such as annual leave and accumulated sick
leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other
short‑term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.
(ii) Long‑term employee benefit obligations
Liabilities arising in respect of long service leave and annual leave
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which is not expected to be settled within twelve months of the
reporting date are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflow to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.

(p) Comparatives

Employee benefit obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(q) Trust funds

(n) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs can include interest, amortisation of discounts
or premiums relating to borrowings and ancillary costs incurred in
connection with arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except for borrowing
costs incurred as part of the cost of the construction of a qualifying
asset which are capitalised until the asset is ready for its intended
use or sale.
(o) Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount
of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable
from the Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of
the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial
position are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross
basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing
activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified and
repositioned for consistency with current year disclosures.

The RNA from time to time receives monies from third parties to
be held in trust and used for specific prize payments where the
particular prize is eligible to be paid. These monies accrue interest at
the average term deposit rate with any prizes paid deducted from the
balance of the trust fund.
(r) Net Current Asset Position

2016

2015

(38,124)

26,364

434,265

6,632,575

10,753,387

4,592,362

11,187,652

11,224,937

494,280

527,584

4,134,153

3,479,756

712,600

834,400

5,341,033

4,841,740

2,915,674

-

‑ Buildings

2,159,379

4,004,470

‑ Plant and equipment

1,445,626

1,488,397

27,160

24,488

3,632,165

5,517,355

136,840

188,560

14,537

29,535

3,885,454

3,928,810

2016

2015

30,189

31,930

3,179,628

2,753,396

3,209,817

2,785,326

Profit / (Loss) before income tax has been determined after:
Net gain on disposal of non‑current assets:
‑ Profit / (Loss) on sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment
- Redevelopment Net Revenue – K1

At 31 December 2016 the Association’s current liabilities exceed
its current assets by $10,558,534 (2015: $7,174,735). Current
liabilities include borrowings of $4,630,670 (2015: $5,199,854).
The repayments on the QTC loan (refer note 12) will be funded by
Lend Lease by way of Advance Land Payments through the RNADF
as stipulated under the Project Development Agreement (PDA).
Prepaid Land Entitlements – The Yards of $9,545,988 (refer Note 14)
consist of Land.

‑ Redevelopment Net Revenue - The Green

Entitlements were paid by Lend Lease in 2016 prior to The Yards property
settlement which will occur in the 2017 period. This prepayment will be
taken up as revenue when property settlements occur.

- Lend Lease Performance Payments

(s) Sinking fund

Net gain on Compensation claims

The RNA entered into a Site Management Agreement in 2016
which provides governance over the shared Brisbane Showgrounds
precinct public realm. Under this agreement, a Sinking Fund
containing contributions from each property across the Brisbane
Showgrounds Precinct has been established to provide funds for
future capital maintenance and improvements in public realm areas.

Depreciation

Note 2: Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Certain accounting estimates include assumptions concerning the
future, which, by definition, will seldom represent actual results.
Estimates and assumptions based on future events have a significant
inherent risk, and where future events are not as anticipated there
could be a material impact on the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabilities discussed below:

Note 3: Operating surplus

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based upon
expectations of the consumption of the assets at their acquisition
date and are re‑assessed annually. The actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment may vary for various reasons from the
useful lives adopted for depreciation purposes.

Cost of Goods Sold - Redevelopment
‑ Land held for resale - expensed
- Duties and Taxes

‑ Sub‑stations and electrical equipment

Amortisation of non‑current assets
‑ Software
Bad debts
‑ Trade receivables
Finance costs

(a) Impairment

- Interest and Finance charges paid/payable for financial liabilities not at fair value through the profit and loss

All assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date by
evaluating whether indicators of impairment exist in relation to the
continued use of the asset by the RNA. If an indicator of impairment
exists the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
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Note 5: Receivables

Note 7: Other assets
2016

2015

2015

282,953

335,902

Current

Current
Trade receivables

714,819

413,874

Prepayments

Provision for impairment

(11,761)

(27,086)

Restricted cash – RNADF (a)

83,879

13,331

703,058

386,788

Restricted cash – Sinking Fund (b)

67,143

-

14,180

22,749

3,416,601

-

116,276

536,124

537,492

474,988

2,584,054

4,296,510

4,388,068

824,221

3,417,568

5,242,171

Other receivables
GST receivable
Land Entitlements – The Green

Non Current
Net Redevelopment Receivable – K1 commercial tower (a)

6,546,359

6,112,094

(a) Net Redevelopment Receivable – K1 commercial tower

Charge for the year
Amounts written off (uncollectable)
CLOSING BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER

27,086

49,010

7,387

16,265

(22,712)

(38,189)

11,761

27,086

Note 6: Inventories

The RNA development fund (RNADF) is an account established to receive Land Entitlements and other RNA Project Entitlements and to pay
RNA Project Costs and other expenses relevant to the development project.
(b) Restricted cash – Sinking Fund

2016

2015

1,298,188

1,774,675

(1,266,234)

(1,589,923)

31,954

184,752

Opening balance

184,752

395,217

Additions

(15,958)

(21,905)

Amortisation expense

(136,840)

(188,560)

CLOSING BALANCE

31,954

184,752

Software at cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current financial year

2015

Current
At cost
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(a) Restricted cash – RNADF

Reconciliations

2016

FINISHED GOODS

Other current assets

Note 8: Intangible assets

Impairment of trade receivables
Opening balance at 1 January

Prepaid EDQ (Economic Development Qld) Infrastructure Levies – The Yards

The Sinking Fund is an account established to receive contributions from the Brisbane Showgrounds precinct property owners for the purpose
of future capital maintenance and improvements to shared public realm areas.

K1 commercial tower settled in the 2015 year. The non-current Net receivable is the Net Present Value of Land Entitlements offset by
development fees and payments owed to Lend Lease. Monies will be paid into RNADF in the years 2018 and 2019.
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2016

95,674

73,093

Software at cost
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Note 9: Redevelopment work in progress

Reconciliations
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current financial year

2016

2015

Current Assets
Redevelopment Work In Progress

879,391

461,193

7,346,369

7,863,285

Redevelopment Work In Progress comprises capitalised expenses in relation to the redevelopment project including but not limited to legal
expenses, consultants fees and salaries and wages.

Note 10: Property, plant and equipment
2015

Land

96,880

96,880

Buildings and ground improvements

Accumulated depreciation

90,527,873

91,915,928

(25,180,601)

(24,434,771)

65,347,272

67,481,157

20,804,222

(12,695,466)

(14,170,011)

5,718,548

6,634,211

Sub‑stations and electrical equipment at cost

544,352

2,687,261

Accumulated depreciation

(251,024)

(2,366,773)

293,328

320,488

Work‑in‑progress ‑ construction

1,082,265

759,070

Total plant and equipment

7,094,141

7,713,769

72,538,293

75,291,806

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

58

2016 RNA Annual Report

96,880

96,880

67,481,157

71,133,049

25,494

352,578

Depreciation expense

(2,159,379)

(4,004,470)

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

65,347,272

67,481,157

6,634,211

7,909,083

529,963

213,525

(1,445,626)

(1,488,397)

5,718,548

6,634,211

320,488

303,160

-

41,816

(27,160)

(24,488)

293,328

320,488

Opening carrying amount

759,070

271,890

Additions

323,195

487,180

1,082,265

759,070

72,538,293

75,291,806

Opening carrying amount
Additions

Opening carrying amount
Additions

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT
Sub‑stations and electrical equipment

Additions
Depreciation expense
CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT
Work‑in‑progress ‑ Construction and other related equipment

18,414,014

Accumulated depreciation

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT

Opening carrying amount

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment at cost

96,880

Depreciation expense

Freehold land

At cost

96,880

Plant and equipment

2016

At cost

Opening carrying amount

Buildings

Non Current Assets
Redevelopment Work In Progress

Freehold land

CLOSING CARRYING AMOUNT
TOTAL PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Rights and Obligations attached to Freehold Land

The Association is incorporated under the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 (“the Act”) and
operates under the provisions of that Act. In accordance with the Act, the Association cannot sell its land without the approval of the Governor
in Council. In the event of an RNA insolvency, the balance site (approx 14 ha which has not been made available for private development) would
be divested automatically to the State Government.
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Large Animal Pavilion ‑ Lend Lease

Note 11: Payables
2016

2015

Note 13: Provisions

Current
Unsecured liabilities
Trade creditors

994,255

1,216,079

EDQ (Economic Development Qld) Infrastructure Levies – The Green

1,934,568

-

Sundry creditors and accruals

1,008,255

1,936,542

3,937,078

3,152,621

2016

2015

-

750,000

1,014,885

302,285

860,047

772,032

1,874,932

1,824,317

Lend Lease Performance Payments

532,115

532,115

Employee benefits

127,917

122,386

TOTAL NON CURRENT PROVISION

660,032

654,501

2016

2015

Venue hire rent and bond

1,051,770

761,620

Deferred revenue (i)

1,306,680

1,086,187

Prepaid Land Entitlements – The Yards

9,545,988

-

201,834

239,630

12,106,272

2,087,437

15,418,799

23,242,116

15,418,799

23,242,116

Lend Lease initial payments (a)

5,337,758

5,642,400

Contribution to public realm development (b)

5,511,344

5,827,523

Advance land payments (c)

4,542,126

11,447,780

Ekka Gross Floor Area (GFA) Waiver (d)

1,334,250

1,410,600

16,725,478

24,328,303

Current
Redevelopment
Lend Lease Performance Payments
Employee benefits

Note 12: Borrowings

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISION

2016

2015

Current
Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

As part of the construction of the Large Animal Pavilion within the next stage of the RNA Redevelopment Project, Lend Lease has agreed to lend
RNA $30 million to fund the facility. Repayments of this loan facility are to be disbursed from RNADF when the RNADF has the funds for this to
occur. As at 31 December 2016 $773,297 (2015: $366,153) had been drawn down.

4,630,670

5,199,854

4,630,670

5,199,854

Non Current

Non Current

Note 14: Other liabilities

Secured liabilities
Queensland Treasury Corporation loan

51,468,776

56,098,727

Cash Advance Facility ‑ Lend Lease

6,078,042

5,899,878

Large Animal Pavilion – Lend Lease

773,297

366,153

58,320,115

62,364,758

Terms and conditions

Current

Other

Queensland Treasury Corporation Loans
The RNA has entered into a loan agreement with Queensland Treasury Corporation to assist in the financing of new facilities to be delivered as part
of the RNA redevelopment. The loan is secured by a first registered mortgage over the balance site (i.e. the part of the RNA site that is not within
the private development lots to be sold in accordance with the Project Development Agreement) and a first ranking charge over all of the assets of
the RNA. As at 31 December 2016 $59,000,000 (2015: $59,000,000) had been drawn down, interest charges of $17,431,453 (2015: $13,734,778)
calculated using the effective interest rate method have been capitalised and repayments of principal and interest totalling $20,332,725 (2015:
interest of $11,436,156) have been made.
Repayments of the principal are scheduled over an 11 year period with the first repayments made in 2016. Interest was variable until 10 January
2014 when it converted to a fixed rate of 7.105%. Interest was paid monthly whilst the rate was variable and then quarterly once the loan was
transferred to the fixed facility.
The RNA also has a working capital facility with QTC to the value of $3 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: $3Million). This facility was not drawn
at balance date (2015: $nil drawn).
Cash Advance facility ‑ Lend Lease
As part of the RNA Redevelopment Project, Lend Lease has agreed to provide a standby cash advance facility of up to $10 million to meet funding
shortfalls, essentially for Levies and RNA Project Costs. The terms and conditions of this facility are set out in a Project Finance Agreement. This
facility will be repaid by future cash flows from the Redevelopment Project. The facility end date is the date of the final payment of all ULDA levies
under the Redevelopment project. Interest is charged on the same basis as the Queensland Treasury Corporation Loan. Interest is not required to be
repaid until there are sufficient funds in the RNADF to repay the interest. As at 31 December 2016 $5,479,756 (2015: $5,479,756) had been drawn
down. Accumulated Interest of $598,287 (2015: $420,123) has been capitalised to the loan to date.
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Non Current
Deferred revenue (i)

(i) Deferred revenue comprises:

(a) Lend Lease initial payments
Under the Project Development Agreement the Developer is liable to pay to the RNA the sum of $6 million as a contribution towards the RNA’s costs
and expenses of entering into the Redevelopment Agreement. These payments are made at intervals during the first 48 months of the project.
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(b) Contribution to public realm development
This amount relates to payments received from the developer for infrastructure works in relation to the Redevelopment Project, carried out by the RNA.

Note 16: Key management personnel compensation

(c) Advance land payments ‑ Lend Lease
Amounts owing to Lend Lease pursuant to the Master Plan Project Development Agreement (PDA) are secured by:
- a mortgage over the land designated for redevelopment under the PDA

Compensation received by key management personnel of the association

- a conditional contract for RNA to transfer undeveloped portions of the redevelopment land. Settlement of this contract only occurs if the PDA is
terminated because of RNA default and Lend Lease elects to complete that contract instead of enforcing its mortgage security.

Under the revised Project Development Agreement, the GFA restriction has been removed with Lend Lease paying RNA $1,500,000 as compensation.

Note 15: Reserves

Sinking Fund (b)

2016

2015

274,580

276,350

67,143

-

341,723

276,350

Trust funds consist of funds received from third parties to be held in trust and used for specific prize payments. The transfer in the year comprises
interest earned on the funds in the year calculated at the average term deposit rate less prizes paid from the fund in the year.

Note 17: Cash flow information
2016

2015

1,195,028

(3,600,472)

3,769,005

5,705,915

38,124

(26,364)

(11,902,546)

-

178,164

165,511

4,769,195

4,189,814

(1,071,729)

(436,277)

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit for the year
Profit / (Loss) for the year

Adjustments and non‑cash items
Depreciation & amortisation

Net (gain) / loss on sale of land

276,350

280,840

Interest received during the year

6,335

6,385

Prize payments during the year

(8,105)

(10,875)

Interest expensed on loans included in financing activities

274,580

276,350

Adjustment to finance costs to recognise borrowings at amortised cost

Interest Capitalised on loan

(b) Sinking fund

Bad Debts Expense

14,537

29,535

The RNA has entered into a Site Management Agreement in 2016 which provides governance over the shared Brisbane Showgrounds
precinct public realm. Under this agreement, a Sinking Fund containing contributions from each property across the Brisbane Showgrounds
Precinct has been established to provide funds for future capital maintenance and improvements in public realm areas.

Net increase in Trust funds

(1,770)

(4,490)

Movements in reserve

(Increase) / decrease in receivables

4,363,225

(9,034,732)

(9,560)

(107,782)

Opening balance
Contributions received during the year
Expenditure during the year
CLOSING BALANCE

Changes in assets and liabilities

-

-

(Increase) / decrease in other assets

67,143

-

(Increase) / decrease in land held for resale

494,280

527,583

-

-

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

(22,579)

40,833

67,143

-

Increase / (decrease) in payables

(552,427)

(89,361)

Increase / (decrease) in unearned income

(437,567)

(640,863)

93,546

71,073

916,926

(3,210,077)

Increase / (decrease) in provisions
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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1,888,449

At the Association’s Council meeting on 27 October 2000, it was resolved that ‘Country Councillors’ who travel a distance of more than 100km
radius from Brisbane be reimbursed their travel expenses based on Australian Taxation Office rates, as published, and be able to claim overnight
accommodation where applicable for attending official meetings of the Council and the Executive Committee. At 31 December 2016 there were 6
Councillors (2015: 5) eligible to claim travel expenses.

Net (gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments

Movements in reserve

CLOSING BALANCE

1,940,710

Councillors do not receive remuneration for their membership of Council.

(a) Trust funds

Opening balance

2015

Councillors

(d) Ekka Gross Floor Area (GFA) Waiver

Trust funds (a)

2016

2016 RNA Annual Report

2016 RNA Annual Report

63

In the opinion of the Council the financial report as set out on pages 48 - 64:

Note 18: Related party transactions

1.

Presents fairly the financial position of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland as at 31 December 2016 and
performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards ‑ Reduced Disclosure Requirements
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

2.

At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

The name of each person holding the position of Councillor of the Association during the year is listed in the Councillors’ Report.
Other transactions between the Association and Councillors and their related entities are immaterial in nature and occur with normal customer/
supplier relationships on terms and conditions no more favourable than those which it is reasonable to expect would have been adopted if
dealings with non‑Councillor related entities at arm’s length in the same circumstances.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Council and is signed for and on behalf of the Council by:

Note 19: Capital and leasing commitments
2016

2015

(a) Operating lease payable commitments

Council member:
Justice D G Thomas ‑ President

Non‑cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements:

Council member:
Mr W T Rothwell ‑ Honorary Treasurer

Payable
‑ not later than one year

23,308

64,097

-

23,308

23,308

87,405

43,190

42,037

‑ later than one year and not later than five years

160,790

180,812

‑ later than five years

338,203

361,371

542,183

584,220

‑ later than one year and not later than five years

Dated this 22nd day of February 2017

The Association has a five year lease with CSG (beginning March 2012) for photocopiers
(b) Operating lease receivable commitments
Receivable
‑ not later than one year

The Association has re‑negotiated a 10 year lease with Telstra Corporation for ground rental on RNA land commencing 1 March 2010, and
re‑negotiated a 20 year lease with Vodafone Network for ground rental on RNA land commencing 1 September 2014. The Association has also
negotiated a 5 year lease for Royals Equestrian Riding School.

Note 21: Contingent liabilities
As at reporting date, there are no known contingent liabilities.

Note 22: Economic dependency
The Association is economically dependent on Lend Lease (the developer of the RNA regeneration project) for the short to medium term funding
of the QTC loan. This dependency will continue until the net cashflows from the private development lots are sufficient to extinguish the loan.

Note 23: Events subsequent to reporting date
There has been no matter or circumstance which has arisen since 31 December 2016 that has significantly affected or may significantly affect:
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(a)

the operations, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2016, of the RNA or

(b)

the results of those operations or

(c)

the state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 31 December 2016, of the RNA
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of the
Royal National Agricultural
and Industrial Association
of Queensland
We have audited the accompanying financial report of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland, which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of members’ funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the Councillors’ declaration.

Councillors’ responsibility for the financial report
The Councillors of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland are responsible for the preparation
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to
audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Councillors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of The Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland is in accordance
with the Royal National Agricultural and Industrial Association of Queensland Act 1971 (as amended) including:
(a)	giving a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of its performance for the year
ended on that date; and
(b)	complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements.
PITCHER PARTNERS

J.J Evans
Partner
Brisbane, Queensland
22 February 2017
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historical
timeline
1877
1875
1878
1876
1879
The National Agricultural
and Industrial Association
of Queensland
•

The ‘National Agricultural and Industrial Association of
Queensland’ was formed by a group of colonists

•

The first Council included the Headmaster of Brisbane
Grammar, the General Manager of the Queensland
National Bank and the Editor of the Brisbane Courier
and the Queenslander*

•

•

The first Exhibition
•

The Intercolonial Exhibition of 1876 was held at Bowen Park,
with an estimated 15,000 - 17,000 people attending out of
Brisbane’s population at the time of just 20,600

•

5,000 people charged the turnstiles - chaos ensued until the
mounted troopers were called to drive back the crowd

•

Visitors to the first show were treated to more than 1,000
exhibits

•

The show received 1,700 competition entries in more than 600
classes

•

Entry tickets were large and square for major patrons, circular
for subscribers, blue for judges and red for stewards*

•

Staff included a nightwatchman, 40 stewards and more than
30 judges*

•

Entry to the grounds in the morning was a half-crown, or
visitors could wait until after the official opening when the cost
of a ticket fell to one shilling

•

Competitors were usually charged two shillings and sixpence
per entry*

•

There were competitions for the best manure and the fastest
walking farm horse*

•

The largest prize up for grabs was 25 guineas*

•

The show closed at midnight on Monday 28 August, following
a controversial decision to open on the Sunday*

•

Only three breeds of cattle were displayed at the first show Durham, Hereford and Devon*

•

•

First Ekka ride

Introduction of the first ride in Sideshow Alley a merry-go-round*

The centre of
social activities

The Showgrounds became the centre of the city’s
social activities – musical and drama groups, football,
cricket, lacrosse, athletics and cycling all had headquarters
on grounds

Introduction
of Queensland’s
newest technologies

Ekka patrons were amazed by telephones, microphones,
electric lights and even an electric thief detector

1882

The first railway station

The first railway station opened at the Showgrounds – as an
extension of the Sandgate line
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1888
1891

Main Pavilion destroyed
•

Main Pavilion (corner of Bowen Bridge Road and Gregory
Terrace) was destroyed by fire on June 13, 1888

•

Exhibition Building and
Concert Hall constructed
•

•

The first fireworks display occurred in the Main Arena,
beginning another show tradition*

•

John Macdonald
Stand built

American aviator
•

68

American aviator Arthur Burr Stone used the Main Arena to
take off and land a Metz Bleriot Monoplane, for the first ever
flight over Brisbane
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1919
1920
1921
1923
1926

Edward, Prince of Wales
visits the Ekka

The first district exhibits contest was held – nine regions
competed for a prize pool of £175*

First fireworks
•

Toowoomba’s Austral Hall was bought for £1,500 and reerected at the Showgrounds, making it the largest building of
its type in the state

Ekka cancelled due to
influenza epidemic

Main Pavilion replaced with the Exhibition and Concert Hall
(now known as The Old Museum) on the corner of Bowen
Bridge Road and Gregory Terrace. It was built to replace
the RNA’s first exhibition building (Main Pavilion) which was
destroyed by fire three years earlier. It contains 1.3 million
bricks and was completed in 23 weeks. 300 men were
constantly at work during its construction. The building was
equipped with a huge pipe organ by Wallis and Co of London

1894
1906
1912

1917 1928

Toowoomba’s Austral Hall

The RNA

The prefix ‘Royal’ was added to the association’s name, after
it was granted under warrant from His Majesty King George V

Ernest Baynes Stand built

National Speedway

•

The National Speedway opened at the RNA Showgrounds

•

The Queensland Country Women’s Association made its first
appearance at the Ekka

•

The first night time ring program was held at Ekka, following
the introduction of electric lighting*

1954

Sir Donald Bradman
test debut
•

The Main Arena played host to the test debut of the world’s
greatest batsman Sir Donald Bradman. Bradman was playing
in the first Australia versus England International Test in
Queensland and scored a total of 19 runs

•

The first international rugby league game was held on the
Main Arena

Queen Elizabeth II and
Prince Phillip visited
the Ekka

1964
1966

1930’s

Animal Nursery at the
Ekka introduced

Great Depression
•

New Ekka competitions provided fresh entertainment for
visitors during the depths of the Great Depression, including
goat races which attracted 100 competitors*

1937
1942
1950

Human Cannonball
appeared at the Ekka
for the first time*

Industrial Pavilion opened

World War II

•

•

•

The Ekka was cancelled, as the grounds were used as a
staging depot during World War II

Ekka food traditions

The now symbolic Ekka fairy floss, butter board sandwiches,
Strawberry Sundaes and dagwood dogs were introduced*

1971

International Springbok Tour

•

The International Springbok Tour was held at the RNA
Showgrounds, with a two metre chain wire fence erected to
separate the players from the spectators

1989
Livid Music Festival

The renowned Livid Music Festival was held at the RNA
Showgrounds for the first time, which later featured
performances by superstar group Oasis and Green Day in
2000 and British music icons The Cure in 2002
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1996
2000

Commerce and Exhibition
Buildings constructed

The Inner City Bypass was constructed, and Sideshow Alley
and the woodchop arena were redeveloped

2003

Redevelopment vision
began
•

The RNA Showgrounds Master Plan was approved by
the Urban Land Development Authority, paving way for
construction to start

•

One million people attended events at the RNA Showgrounds
in a calendar year

2011

RNA Showgrounds
Master Plan launched

Redevelopment partner
•

Lendlease was selected as the RNA’s development partner for
the $2.9 billion RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project

Construction started

•

Construction commenced on the Industrial Pavilion, as part of
the RNA Showgrounds Regeneration Project

•

The first release of residential apartments at The Green went
on sale and work began on the related infrastructure

•

British heavy metal band Iron Maiden and world renowned
guitarist Slash performed at Soundwave music festival, which
attracted a crowd of 45,000

•

Grammy Award-winners Wolfmother closed the Ekka’s concert
series in front of a capacity crowd

RNA Council embarked on its vision to keep the Ekka at the RNA
Showgrounds and cement the long-term financial viability of the
RNA, through redeveloping the Showgrounds and its facilities

2005
2009

Master Plan approval

•

Sideshow Alley and
Woodchop
•

2010 2013

Brisbane Showgrounds
launched
•

The Royal ICC was fully completed and held its first events in
March 2013

•

Completion of the Plaza and Porte-Cochere

•

Construction began on K1, the first of the commercial towers
at Kings Gate commercial precinct, and on The Green
residential apartments

•

More than 400,000 guests attended the Ekka

•

The Royal Queensland Show took home the prestigious
Best in Show title, along with 13 other awards, at the 2013
International Association of Fairs and Expositions Awards
(IAFE Awards)

•

More than 54,521 Ekka Facebook friends – a growth of 75 per
cent on 2012

•

The Caravan and Camping Show attracted 71,500 people to
the Brisbane Showgrounds

•

50,000 music lovers descended on the Brisbane
Showgrounds for Soundwave

2014
2012

Royal ICC’s first visitors

•

The ground floor of the brand new Royal International
Convention Centre (Royal ICC) housed the Ekka’s Canine
Competition, Agricultural Hall and horticulture exhibits

•

Construction began on the new 7,000m2, $7.7 million Plaza

•

Brisbane Showgrounds
Regeneration Project
stage two underway
•

The RNA was inducted into the Queensland Business Leaders
Hall of Fame for its contribution to the state’s economic and
social history

Stage two of the Brisbane Showgrounds Regeneration
Project launched in September, including the announcement
of the four and a half star Rydges Hotel and construction
commencing on King Street

•

•

In an Australian first, Ekka fans were able to customise
their own fireworks on the show’s free interactive fireworks
iPhone app

The Royal ICC hosted Her Royal Highness, The Princess Royal
(Princess Anne) and 250 delegates at the Royal Agricultural
Society of the Commonwealth (RASC) conference in October

•

Grammy Award-winner Lorde performed at Laneway festival
to a record crowd

•

New Ekka ticket bundles were introduced and resulted in a
400 per cent increase in pre-sales

•

2012 Australian of the Year and Academy Award-winning
actor and producer Geoffrey Rush attended the opening day
of the Ekka

•

In true Queensland style, a cricket match involving cricketing
greats Adam Gilchrist, Glenn McGrath, Ian Healy, Andy Bichel
and Jimmy Maher took place on the Main Arena on the final
day of the Ekka

•

45,000 revellers made their way to Soundwave to enjoy
performances by System of a Down, Marilyn Manson, Slipknot
and Limp Bizkit

2015
Hotel construction

•

Work started on the 208 room, four and a half star Rydges
Hotel on the corner of Gregory Terrace and King Street, with
construction completed in December

•

In June, Kings Gate commercial sector opened for business
on the corner of King Street and St Pauls Terrace, becoming
the Queensland head office for Lendlease

•

In September, the RNA welcomed the very first residents to
the Brisbane Showgrounds in The Green apartments

2016

King Street comes to life

•

The 208 room, four and a half star Rydges Hotel, along
with the Paddock Bar and Six Acres restaurant, opened on
King Street in February. The street, which connects St Pauls
Terrace and Gregory Terrace, also opened to traffic the
same month.

•

From August to November, King Street welcomed restaurants
The George Bar and Bistro, Fat Dumpling, Sushi & Nori, Hello
Chicken and Il Verde

•

After 119 years, The Old Museum came home to Ekka,
forming a brand new precinct home to the Flower and Garden
Exhibition and Quilts Across Queensland

* Historical information and statistics sourced from ‘Showtime - A History of the Brisbane Exhibition’ by Joanne Scott and Ross Laurie,2008; and RNA Archives.
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